
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, May 18, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Wisconsin Law Enforcement Accreditation Group (WILEAG) Presentation
(Jacobs/ Robert Rosch, Hartland Police (Jacobs)

b. Introduction to Beloit Services-Citizen Service Request Program (Boysen)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of May 4, 2015 (Elson)

b. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Danny R.
Hatch Jr., d/b/a The Alumni House, 863 Fifth Street (Elson)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-1

c. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for
Blazin Wings, Inc., d/b/a Buffalo Wild Wings, 2747 Milwaukee Road, David Babcock, Agent
(Elson)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

d. Resolution awarding Public Works Contract C15-07, Street Resurfacing (Boysen)

7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance to add No-Parking between 3 A.M. – 6 A.M. Regulations in the
Heritage View Parking Lot (Boysen)
Traffic Review Committee recommendation for approval 5-0
First reading, suspend rules for second reading

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS



10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Code Enforcement Presentation (Downing)

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution authorizing the 422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Project (Christensen)

b. Resolution approving a Development Agreement between City of Beloit, 200 West Grand
Avenue, LLC, and East Grand Avenue Development, LLC, for sale of 80 East Grand and
100 East Grand Avenue (Janke)

c. Resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding between Beloit College and City
of Beloit regarding Powerhouse Riverwalk Project (Arft)

d. Resolution approving a Landfill Disposal Agreement between the City of Janesville and
the City of Beloit (Walsh)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: May 13, 2015
Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk
City of Beloit
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, May 4, 2015

Presiding: Charles Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, David F. Luebke,

Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: None

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:10 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall by President Haynes.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Councilor De Forest presented a proclamation declaring May 10-16, 2015 as National Police
Week to Police Chief Norm Jacobs. Chief Jacobs thanked the Council on behalf of the entire
Police Department’s command and support staff and patrol officers. File 7148

b. Councilor De Forest presented a proclamation declaring May 17-23, 2015 as Emergency
Medical Services Week to Fire Chief Brad Liggett, Deputy Joe Murray, Matthew Ahrens and
Parker McKenzie. Deputy Murray explained the Emergency Medical Services and a future
program of Community Health Paramedic. File 7148

c. Councilor De Forest presented a proclamation declaring May 17-23, 2015 as National Public
Works Week to Public Works Director Greg Boysen. Mr. Boysen invited the public to the
Farmers Market where his staff will explain the services and programs of the Department of
Public Works and showcase the equipment used in providing those services. File 7148

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution authorizing a
Conditional Use Permit to allow a residential care apartment complex in a C-1 Office District, for
property at 2020 Cranston Road. It was noted that the Plan Commission recommended
approval 6-0. Councilor Haynes opened and closed the public hearing without participation. Ms.
Christensen stated the applicant assured staff the financing is in place and the project is ready to
proceed starting May 31

st
and completion in March 2016. Councilor Luebke made a motion to

adopt the resolution, second by Councilor Sloniker. Motion carried 7-0. File 8684

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

 Edwin Armstrong, 2945 S. Paddock Road, Men’s Club representative to the Municipal Golf
Committee, stated he was opposed to the fee structure at the golf course as it is too late in
the season to change. Mr. Armstrong suggested running specials, coupons. He said that
having golf boards along with golf carts will bring in teens and young golfers.

 Norbert Larson, 2120 Riverside Drive, #30, stated he is against the increase in the fee
schedule for Krueger Haskell Golf Course.

 Gerald Hoey, 14865 Liston Avenue, South Beloit, IL, stated he was previously a two term
member of the Parks & Recreation Commission, ten year member of the Golf Committee;
Treasurer of the Men’s Club and has played Kruger Haskell Golf Course for sixty years. Mr.
Hoey stated that golf is not a rich man’s game, but played by seniors and people on fixed
incomes and an increase in fees will hurt them.

 Art Case, 1044 ½ Moore Street, suggested holding early outings at 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.
to maximize the use of the golf course, especially on high volume weekends.

 Dede Bucholtz, 3430 S. Prairie Avenue, owner of Bucky’s Bunker with husband Dan. Ms.
Bucholtz expressed concerns about the golf fees going up and said her customers said that



this would cause them to go to other golf courses. She said if this happens it will hurt their
revenue, and they would have to give up their business as concessionaire.

 James Van De Bogart, 2091 Collingswood Drive, represented the Executive Committee of
Friends of Welty Environmental Center, asked the Council to vote in support of the Operating
Agreement for office space at Big Hill Center.

 Roger Blohm, 1817 Merrill Street, expressed his concern with the number of dogs loose in
the City, especially pit bulls and stated his wife and two neighbors were attacked by pit bull
dogs. Mr. Blohm also said he was concerned with the amount of rental property in the City
and felt the City needed to find a way to increase home ownership.

 Vincent Borgogni, 2144 Collingswood Drive, suggested raising the golf fees in increments of
5% per year for the next four years. Mr. Borgogni also suggested eliminating the season golf
passes.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor De Forest requested that item 6. d. be removed from the Consent Agenda. Councilor
Kincaid requested item 6.c. be removed from the Consent Agreement. Councilor Luebke made a
motion to adopt the Consent Agenda which consists of items 6.a. and 6.b., second by Councilor Kelly.
Motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted, approved, adopted or referred and acted upon
as required by state and local code by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the special and regular meetings of April 17, special and regular meetings of April
20, and the organizational meeting of April 21, 2015 were approved.

b. Applications for Renewal of Alcohol Beverage Licenses for License Period July 1, 2015 – June
30, 2016 were referred to ABLCC. File 8688

c. Public Works Director, Greg Boysen, presented a resolution awarding Public Works Contract
C15-11 for Colley Road Interceptor Lining to Michaels Corporation. Mr. Boysen stated that
funds are available in the 2014 and 2015 CIP, and the City should have a very reliable pipe for
many decades to come. Councilor Luebke moved to adopt, second by Councilor Sloniker.
Motion carried 7-0. File 8678

d. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution approving
Residential Offers to Purchase the properties located at 940 Second Street, 42 Merrill Street,
9578 Third Street and 959 Third Street. Ms. Christensen stated the tenants would continue to
rent the units which are already owner occupied and the Beloit Housing Authority will manage
these units. Councilor Kincaid moved to adopt, second by Councilor De Forest. Motion carried
7-0. File 8689

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS

President Haynes presented the following City Council Committee/Board/Commission
Appointments:

 Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee –Councilor Kelly
 Appointment Review Committee – President Haynes and Vice President De Forest
 Business Improvement District (Downtown Beloit Association) – Councilor Luebke
 Community Action, Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties – Councilor Hendrix
 Community Development Authority – Councilors Kelly and Kincaid
 Convention and Visitors Bureau Board of Directors – Councilor Hendrix
 Equal Opportunities Commission – Councilor Sloniker
 Landmarks Commission – Councilor Kelly
 Metropolitan Planning Organization – Councilor Sloniker
 Park, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Commission – Councilor De Forest
 Plan Commission – Councilor Kincaid
 Traffic Review Committee - Councilor Luebke



9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor Hendrix stated she attended an activity at Beloit College sponsored by Black Lives
Matter Committee. She is also planning with Visit Beloit for the Summer Gospel Jam on June
20

th
featuring Mississippi Mass Choir, and encouraged the public to attend this free event.

She also announced the following upcoming events: Financial Literacy Conference hosted
through Community Action on May 9

th
at Aldrich School, First Generation film at Beloit

College on Saturday, May 9
th
.

 Councilor Sloniker said she attended the Arbor Day event. She said that the Equal
Opportunities Commission held two ownership seminars which was a goal for Fair Housing
Month.

 Councilor Kelly stated she attended the Arbor Day event, the UW Rock County Dean’s
Luncheon, and announced that the Jazz Band will play their last concert on May 18

th
at La

Casa.
 Councilor Luebke stated he attended the Dean’s Community Council, Farmers Market and

Arbor Day event.
 Councilor De Forest announced a Community Action event on May 8

th
for free summer

training for welding.
 Councilor Kincaid attended the League of Women Voters breakfast, Farmers Market, and

went to the Krueger Haskell Golf Course and enjoyed watching the High School golf
tournament. He also attended the Land of Oz program at Beloit Library.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Manager Larry Arft introduced the presentation on Kruger Haskell Golf Course operations and
explained that the financial reports for 2014 showed a $50,000 operating loss at the golf course
as well as a $50,000 property tax subsidy that was approved by Council. He noted that the
Manager Arft further explained the accumulated fund balance from the Golf Course General Fund
is $970,000 and is threatening the General Fund. Brian Ramsey, Director of Parks & Leisure
Services, reviewed the history of the Krueger Haskell Golf Course and that the course has failed
to exceed revenue over expenditures for at least the past twelve years. Mr. Ramsey explained a
comparable study of rates and fees of competitive golf courses and said that the proposed new
fee schedule is comparable and competitive. File 7382

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Mr. Boysen presented a resolution authorizing a revision to the 2015 Schedule of Fees, Charges
and Rates for Krueger Haskell Golf Course. Councilor De Forest stated if the rates are not raised
the City will lose the golf course and she moved to adopt the resolution, second by Councilor
Kelly. Councilor De Forest made a motion to amend the resolution to remove the Season Golf
Passes and Discount Card Fees from the resolution, second by Councilor Luebke. Motion
carried 5-1-1 with Councilor Sloniker voting no, and Councilor Kincaid abstaining. Motion to
adopt the amended resolution carried 5-1-1 with Councilor Sloniker voting no and Councilor
Kincaid abstaining File 8649/7382

b. Ms. Christensen presented a resolution approving amendments to the City of Beloit’s Housing
Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Program. Ms. Christensen stated there has been an increase in
vacant, abandoned and foreclosed properties and the staff is proposing incentives in the Loan
Program to encourage investors and potential owner-occupants to purchase and rehab
properties. Councilor De Forest moved to adopt, second by Councilor Kincaid. Motion carried 7-
0. File 7977

c. Mr. Boysen presented a resolution approving a First Amendment to the Cooperative Agreement
between the City of Beloit and the Ho-Chunk Nation for Colley Road and Willowbrook Road
TIGER Grant Project. He explained the amendment provides funding for the TIGER Grant to be
increased to $2,400,000 and extends the completion date to October 31, 2022. Councilor Luebke
moved to adopt, second by Councilor Sloniker. Motion carried 7-0. File 8525

d. Mr. Boysen presented a resolution to the City of Beloit’s “Gateway to Opportunity” TIGER 2015
Grant Application. He emphasized the resolution would create the City’s commitment of $1.5
million if the TIGER Grant is awarded. Councilor Luebke moved to adopt, second by Councilor
Sloniker. Motion carried 7-0. File 8525

e. Fire Chief Brad Liggett presented a resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding
between the City of Beloit and Mercy Health System Corporation regarding its designation as a



Medical Control Hospital for the City’s basic and advanced life support services program. Chief
Liggett sated this is an excellent program which would be provided to Beloit at no charge. He
explained that Beloit Health Systems would like a chance to compete for this program and staff
recommended giving them a chance. Manager Arft emphasized this is for the administration for
emergency medical care services and the City is not steering business away from Beloit
Memorial. Councilor De Forest moved to lay this matter over to an indeterminate date, second by
Councilor Luebke. Motion carried 7-0. File 8690

f. Manager Arft presented a resolution authorizing an Operating Agreement between the City of
Beloit and Friends of Welty Environmental Center, Inc. for office space at Big Hill Center, 201 Big
Hill Court. Manager Arft advised that this is a great opportunity for enhanced joint programming
and educational opportunities for the community. Councilor Luebke moved adopt, second by
Councilor Kincaid. Motion carried 7-0. File 6811

g. City Attorney Elizabeth Krueger presented a resolution designating Larry N. Arft as City Manager
Emeritus and explained that this would clarify that Lori Curtis Luther will take over all the powers
and duties of the position of City Manager on June 1, 2015 and Larry Arft will become City
Manager Emeritus on June 1, 2015 and ending July 3, 2015. File 8052

12. At 10:00 p.m., Councilor Hendrix made a motion to adjourn the meeting, second by Councilor
Sloniker. Motion carried.

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by Council:



RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

DANNY R. HATCH JR, D/B/A THE ALUMNI HOUSE

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor License from Danny R. Hatch Jr., d/b/a The Alumni House, located at 863 Fifth
Street; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the 2014-2015 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor
License for Danny R. Hatch Jr., d/b/a The Alumni House, located at 863 Fifth Street is
hereby approved.

Dated this 18th day of May 2015.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Danny R. Hatch Jr, d/b/a The
Alumni House

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Judith A. Elson Department: Deputy City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Danny R. Hatch, Jr., has submitted an application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the property
located at 863 Fifth Street in the City of Beloit. The applicant intends to operate a tavern, which is the same use at the
previous tenant, and will be doing business as The Alumni House.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Michael Weaver is the property owner. However, the applicant will provide proof of control over the premises
through a deed, lease, or rental agreement prior to issuance of the license.

2. Danny R. Hatch, Jr. is a sole proprietor and is a resident of Wisconsin, as required by state law.
3. Overby, LLC, Wayne Overby, Agent, previously held a liquor license at this location. Mr. Overby will relinquish the

license to Mr. Hatch if approved by the City Council.
4. The ABLCC reviewed this item on May 12, 2015 and voted unanimously (5-1) to recommend approval of the

License.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
This project conforms to the City’s Strategic Plan Goals #2 and #5 – encouraging business development and private
sector investment, and promoting high quality development in the City.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council consideration and action on the license application.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
This is a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License and the applicant will pay a pro-rated monthly license fee for the
beer and wine license through the end of the license year (June 30, 2015).

Attachments:
Resolution, Application, Auxiliary Questionnaire









RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND RESERVE “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

BLAZIN WINGS, INC.

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B”
Liquor License from Blazin Wings, Inc., d/b/a Buffalo Wild Wings, David Babcock, Agent for the
property located at 2747 Milwaukee Road, Beloit Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended approval of
this Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for the remainder of the 2014-2015
license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit does
hereby approve a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Blazin Wings, Inc.,
d/b/a Buffalo Wild Wings, David Babcock, Agent for the property located at 2747 Milwaukee
Road, Beloit Wisconsin.

Dated this 18th day of May 2015.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Blazin Wings, Inc.

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Judith A. Elson Department: Deputy City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Blazin Wings, Inc. has submitted an application for a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for the
property located at 2747 Milwaukee Road in the City of Beloit. The applicant intends to open a Buffalo Wild Wings
restaurant and sports bar.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Morgan Square 2 LLC, owns the property. However, the applicant will provide proof of control over the premises
through a deed, lease, or rental agreement prior to issuance of the license.

2. Blazin Wings, Inc. has appointed David Babcock as the Agent. Mr. Babcock is a resident of Wisconsin, as
required by state law.

3. Atlanta Bread previously held a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License at this location.
4. The ABLCC reviewed this item on May 12, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the

License.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
This project conforms to the City’s Strategic Plan Goals #2 and #5 – encouraging business development and private
sector investment, and promoting high quality development in the City.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The applicant intends to open

a restaurant in an existing vacant building in the Milwaukee Street Corridor. This may bring additional people to
the area and may spur additional economic development.

Action required/Recommendation:
City Council consideration and action on the license application.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
This is a Reserve Liquor License, which means that the applicant will pay a one-time $10,000 reserve fee plus the pro-
rated monthly license fee for the beer and liquor license through the end of the license year (June 30, 2015). The $10,000
was not budgeted revenue in the Clerk’s office and will be deposited into the City’s General Fund.

Attachments:
Resolution, Application, Auxiliary Questionnaires

















RESOLUTION
AWARDING PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C15-07

Street Resurfacing

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2015, one competitive bid was received, the low bid being from Rock Road
Companies, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, Rock Road Companies, Inc. is a qualified bidder.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Public Works Contract C15-07, Street Resurfacing, is hereby
awarded to Rock Road Companies, Inc., Janesville, WI, in the following amounts:

Rock Road Companies, Inc.
PO Box 1818
Janesville, WI 53547-1818

Base Bid $ 655,271.60
Allowance for Change Orders and/or Extra Work $ 97,728.40
TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 753,000.00

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amount of $753,000.00 is hereby funded as follows:

P2902187-5514-2015 Street Maintenance $ 743,000.00
P2210631-5511-2015 Cemetery Maintenance $ 10,000.00

TOTAL $ 753,000.00

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 18th day of May, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
ATTEST:

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Award of Contract C15-07, Street Resurfacing

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen P.E., Public Works Director Department(s): Public Works/ Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project will overlay rough pavements on 34 blocks of city streets.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. One bid was received for this project. The low bid of $655,271.60 was from Rock Road Companies, Inc. and is 2.4%
more than the engineer’s estimate of $639,906.39.

2. Rock Road Companies, Inc. is considered a responsible bidder for this project.
3. The costs for this project are as follows: $655,271.60 for construction, $ 97,728.40 for Change Orders or extra work,

for a total of $753,000.00.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):
1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources

to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

This project will enhance the quality of life in Beloit by improving the appearance and quality of ride on City Streets
while lowering street maintenance costs.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

n/a

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The improved pavement meets the present and future human needs by extending the life of the pavement, and
reducing pavement maintenance.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends awarding this Public Works Contract to Rock Road Companies, Inc. in the amount of
$655,271.60.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Funding is available in the 2015 Capital Improvement Plan.



CITY OF BELOIT
DEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE

TO: Mike Flesch
FROM: Andy Hill, Project Engineer
DATE: May 07, 2015
SUBJECT: Bid Results for Contract C15-07

Street Resurfacing

Pursuant to advertisements placed April 22 and April 29, bids were received until 3:00 PM
on May 7 for the Street Resurfacing. A tabulation of bids is attached.

One bid was received for this project as follows:

1. Rock Road Companies, Inc. Janesville $ 655,271.60 *Low
Engineer's Estimate $ 639,906.39

Upon review of the Contractor’s Proof of Responsibility Statement, Rock Road Companies,
Inc. is determined to be a responsible bidder.

I recommend that the contract be awarded to Rock Road Companies, Inc. of Janesville. The
following is a breakdown of the proposed project cost:

COSTS
Rock Road Companies, Inc. $ 655,271.60
Allowance for Change Orders and/or Extra Work $ 97,728.40

TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 753,000.00

PROJECT INFORMATION
This project will overlay rough pavements on 34 blocks of city streets.



Tabulation of Bids
Contract C15-07

Street Resurfacing
Bids Opened May 7, 3:00 PM

Engineer's Estimate
Rock Road

Companies, Inc.
Janesville

Item

No.
Bid Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price Extended

1 Traffic Control 34 Block $300.00 $10,200.00 $350.00 $11,900.00

2 Erosion Control Type C Inlet Protection 54 Each $125.00 $6,750.00 $125.00 $6,750.00

3 Full Depth Sawcut 541 LF $3.00 $1,623.00 $3.00 $1,623.00

4 AC Milling 55,862 SY $2.70 $150,827.40 $2.60 $145,241.20

5 Asphalt Pulverize in place 1,747 SY $3.10 $5,415.70 $1.00 $1,747.00

6 PCC Milling 1,791 SY $3.50 $6,268.50 $3.70 $6,626.70

7 PCC Crack and Seat 1,791 SY $2.69 $4,817.79 $3.33 $5,964.03

8 Subgrade stabilization flyash material 105 Ton $55.62 $5,840.10 $60.00 $6,300.00

9 Flyash distribution and mixing 1,747 SY $6.22 $10,866.34 $7.40 $12,927.80

10 Crushed Limestone, 3/4" grad. 76 Ton $18.98 $1,442.48 $24.00 $1,824.00

11
Supply and Install Neenah R-1710 MH Casting
with locking,non-rocking Type "B" lid, with up to
12" of new adjusting rings

17 Each

$840.00 $14,280.00 $1,200.00 $20,400.00

12 HMA Pavement, Binder Course 251 Ton
$57.50 $14,432.50 $59.00 $14,809.00

13 HMA Pavement, Surface Course 6,104 Ton
$58.50 $357,084.00 $59.00 $360,136.00

14 Curb & Gutter R&R 226 LF $45.00 $10,170.00 $57.25 $12,938.50

15 6" Thick PCC Driveway 86 SF $7.15 $614.90 $8.00 $688.00

16 4" Thick PCC Sidewalk 798 SF $6.90 $5,506.20 $6.26 $4,995.48

17 Detectable Warning Field 10 Each $320.00 $3,200.00 $326.00 $3,260.00

18 Pavement Marking, Words-ONLY, Epoxy 2 Each $260.00 $520.00 $275.00 $550.00

19 Pavement Marking, Words-SLOW, Epoxy 4 Each $250.00 $1,000.00 $275.00 $1,100.00

20 Pavement Marking, Words-SCHOOL, Epoxy 4 Each $400.00 $1,600.00 $300.00 $1,200.00

21
Pavement Marking, Stop Bar, White, 24-Inch,

White
16 LF $7.00 $112.00 $11.00 $176.00

22
Pavement Marking, Lane Line, White, 8-Inch,

Epoxy
183 LF $2.10 $384.30 $1.00 $183.00



Tabulation of Bids
Contract C15-07

Street Resurfacing
Bids Opened May 7, 3:00 PM

Engineer's Estimate
Rock Road

Companies, Inc.
Janesville

Item

No.
Bid Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price Extended

23 Pavement Marking, Crosswalk, 6-Inch, Epoxy 559 LF $5.35 $2,990.65 $7.50 $4,192.50

24
Pavement Marking, Parking, White, 4-Inch,

Epoxy
3,369 LF $2.60 $8,759.40 $3.48 $11,724.12

25
Pavement Marking, Centerline Yellow, 4-Inch,

Epoxy
3,776 LF $1.80 $6,796.80 $1.10 $4,153.60

26 Pavement Marking, Arrow, Type 2, Epoxy 4 Each $250.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $1,000.00

27 Pavement Marking, Arrow, Type 3, Epoxy 2 Each $300.00 $600.00 $300.00 $600.00

28 Shouldering 1,597 LF $2.00 $3,194.00 $2.11 $3,369.67

29 Sod Lawn Restoration 117 SY $30.83 $3,607.11 $76.00 $8,892.00

Total Proposal $639,903.17 $655,271.60



²

Legend

2015 overlay

<all other values>

2015 Street Resurfacing Plan





ORDINANCE NO. ________

AN ORDINANCE TO ADD NO-PARKING BETWEEN 3A.M.-6 A.M.
REGULATIONS IN THE HERITAGE VIEW PARKING LOT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1: Section 13.02 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin, is hereby amended by Adding to Section III (H), Index of Special Locations,
Parking Time Limited on Certain Streets, Miscellaneous Limitations on Parking, the following:

Heritage View Parking Lot –All stalls located directly in front of the Heritage View
Building located at 604 Pleasant Street – No Parking between 3 A.M. and 6 A.M.

Section 2: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this 18th day of May 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL:

By:
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk

Published this day of , 2015

Effective this day of , 2015

01-611100-5231-



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: An Ordinance to restrict parking from 3 A.M. – 6 A.M. in the Heritage View Parking Lot.

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s) Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s):Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

The City of Beloit received a request from Ginger Meinders on behalf of Hendricks Commercial Property to restrict overnight
parking in front of the Heritage View Building.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the April 27, 2015 meeting and the Committee voted (5-0) in
favor of restricting parking between 3 A.M. and 6 A.M. for the stalls located immediately in front of the first floor
storefronts.

2. The Heritage View building currently houses offices/business of the first floor (law firm, spa, financial services, etc.)
and condominiums on the upper floors.

3. The City of Beloit owns and maintains the Heritage View Parking Lot.
4. Currently, the parking stalls located immediately in front of the first floor storefronts do not have a parking time limit.

The building is located outside of the Downtown limits, so overnight parking is not currently regulated.
5. After discussions with the City Attorney, Ms. Meinders, and City staff; it was decided that the restriction of parking

between the hours of 3 A.M. and 6 A.M. would allow for the parking needs of the current tenants while also restricting
the overnight parking.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources
to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends the restriction of parking between 3 A.M. and 6 A.M. for the stalls located immediately
in front of the Heritage View Building. The signage will be similar to what is currently posted in the Downtown area.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

City staff will be responsible for the purchase and installation of the new signage.







RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE 422 BLUFF STREET/310 EUCLID PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit amended the HOME budget to allow
$150,000 of HOME funds to be used for the demolition and rehabilitation project at 422
Bluff Street/310 Euclid Avenue, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit amended the CDBG budget to allow
$11,312.95 of CDBG funds to be used for the demolition of 422 Bluff Street, and

WHEREAS, the HOME subsidy limit for any project in Rock County is established at
$247,709, and

WHEREAS, the low bids for the project total $279,331, which would require an
increase to the HOME-portion of this budget and the use of additional CDBG and/or CIP
funds, and

WHEREAS, the project is an eligible CDBG and HOME activity and is consistent with
the City’s Consolidated Plan.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin amends the HOME Budget to allow $245,000 of HOME funds to be used
for the rehabilitation project at 422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Avenue and allows the City to
use additional CDBG and/or CIP funds to fill the gap in funding for this project.

Adopted this 18th day of May, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk



Page 2 of 14

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Rehabilitation/Demolition of 422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Avenue with HOME dollars

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:

 422 Bluff Street and 310 Euclid Avenue are located on the same parcel and are located in the Bluff
Street Historic District (see location map). 422 Bluff Street is the red house located on the front of the
lot facing Bluff Street, and 310 Euclid Avenue is the white house located on Euclid Avenue (see
attached photos). The Intensive Survey forms for the two houses are attached to this report. The
forms indicate that the houses are both contributing members to the district but that they don’t have
any Architectural or Historical Significance. This property was purchased from Rock County in 2013
as part of the Tax Foreclosure process.

 On January 21, 2014, the City Council approved a CDBG budget amendment which allocated
$11,312.95 to demolish 422 Bluff Street (see attached resolution).

 On January 21, 2014, this project was brought to the Landmarks Commission as a discussion item.
The Community Development Director explained the severely deteriorated condition of 422 Bluff
Street and suggested that both houses should be demolished, and a new house be constructed in its
place. The Commission suggested looking into demolishing 422 Bluff Street and moving 310 Euclid to
the front of the lot.

 On April 15, 2014, the Community Development Director discussed this project with the Commission
and asked if the Commission would support additional architectural elements being added to the
house at 310 Euclid such as a wrap-around porch. They preliminarily expressed support for the
concept.

 On September 15, 2014, the City Council approved a HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME)
Program budget amendment which allocated $150,000 in HOME funds to the rehabilitation project at
422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Avenue (see attached resolution). This project involved demolishing 422
Bluff Street and then moving 310 Euclid to the front of the lot and rehabbing it.

 On September 23, 2014, the Landmarks Commission approved a Certificate of Appropriateness for
the 422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Avenue project, which included the wrap-around porch.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. City staff opted to bid this project as two separate projects. Phase 1 involved demolishing 422 Bluff
Street, removing the foundation, excavating for the new basement, constructing the new foundation,
moving the house onto the new foundation, reconnecting the utilities, and completing final site
grading. Phase 2 involved adding a new porch to 310 Euclid after it was moved and rehabbing the
house.



Page 3 of 14

2. The first time Phase 1 was bid we did not receive any bids. We believe this was due to the short
timeframe required for the project to be completed, so we bid the project a second time with a longer
timeframe for the move. We received three bids the second time we bid it. The lowest bid at $53,318
was rejected due to a conflict of interest. Therefore, the lowest acceptable bid was $87,000, with
$69,500 of the costs being budgeted from HOME funding, $13,000 from demolition funding (a
combination of CDBG and CIP funds), and $7,500 from Public Works funding for right-of-way
improvements (see attached bid summary – 310 Euclid Moving).

3. Phase 2 was bid, and two bids were received (see attached bid summary – Rehab of 310 Euclid at 422
Bluff site). The lowest bid we received was for $192,331, with $189,581 being budgeted for HOME
funds. This gives us an overall project cost of $279,331, with $259,081 being budgeted for HOME
funds. This is above the HOME subsidy limit of $247,709 and well above the $150,000 City Council
authorized to be used for this project.

4. At this point, City staff applied for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to demolish both 422 Bluff
Street and 310 Euclid Avenue. At its April 21, 2015 meeting, the Landmarks Commission approved
the (COA) to demolish 422 Bluff Street but denied the COA to demolish 310 Euclid Avenue (see
attached letter). They offered a number of alternatives to demolition including rehabbing it in its
current location, seeking out investors who may be interested in buying the property from the City
and rehabbing it, or moving it to another location.

5. We contacted a number of investors who have successfully completed similar rehabs in the past and
gave them a tour of 310 Euclid Avenue. There was no interest in doing the project even if the City
gave them the property for $1.00. Since the private sector is not interested in this project, we are
bringing it to the City Council for authorization to proceed with the project. We would have to use
either CDBG or City funds in addition to the HOME funds due to the subsidy limits.

6. The estimated sale price of the house once completed is $75,000 - $80,000.

7. A final option which could be considered would be to demolish 422 Bluff Street and rehab 310 Euclid
in its current location and construct a detached garage. The estimated demolition cost would be
$13,000, which would be funded out of CDBG funds and CIP funds. The estimated rehabilitation cost
is $170,000 for a total project cost of $183,000.

8. See attached Powerpoint.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its
impact on the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5 - Apply sound, sustainable practices to
promote a high quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization and new
development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program
related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following
eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable



Page 4 of 14

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in
nature – Not Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This proposal
would allow us to retain one of the two historic structures located on a lot in the City of Beloit,
which would bring the parcel into compliance with the City’s Zoning Ordinance.

Action required/Recommendation:
Consideration of the attached resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
This project, if approved, would require the use of some of the City’s Acquisition Account or additional
CDBG dollars as well as $245,000 of HOME funds.

Attachments:
Resolutions, Location Map, Photos, Intensive Survey Forms and Bid Summaries



Page 5 of 14



Page 6 of 14

Photos of 422 Bluff Street and 310 Euclid Avenue

422 Bluff Street – East Side

422 Bluff Street – North Side



Page 7 of 14

310 Euclid Avenue



Page 8 of 14



Page 9 of 14



Page 10 of 14



Page 11 of 14



Page 12 of 14



Page 13 of 14



Page 14 of 14



Julie Christensen 

Community Development Director 



• Property includes two 

houses – 422 Bluff Street 

and 310 Euclid Avenue 

• 422 Bluff Street is a 

larger house which was 

divided into three 

dwellings 

• 310 Euclid Avenue is a 

single family house 





 



• Purchased in 2013 after it was foreclosed by Rock County 

• January, 2014  

o Preliminary inspection by City staff resulted in concerns about 
the cost to rehab 422 Bluff Street and the viability of the 
structure 

o James Heidt, Structural Engineer, evaluated the house and 
determined that settlement was occurring in the northeast corner 
of the house.  He also noted that the entire north wall was 
bowed due to the foundation settlement. 

o City staff approached Landmarks Commission about 
demolishing both structures in order to allow new construction on 
site which was discouraged by the Commission.  They 
encouraged keeping one building and asked staff to evaluate 
moving 310 Euclid Avenue. 

o City Council approved a CDBG Budget Amendment which 
allocated $11,312.95 to demolish 422 Bluff Street. 

 

 

 



• April 15, 2014 – City staff met with Landmarks 

Commission to gauge support for adding architectural 

elements to 310 Euclid Avenue to make it more compatible 

with other houses on Bluff Street if the structure was moved 

to the front of the lot. 

• September 15, 2014 – City Council approved a HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) Budget 

Amendment to allocate $150,000 in HOME funds to the 

project 

• September 23, 2014 – Landmarks Commission approved 

a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 422 Bluff 

Street/310 Euclid Avenue project as proposed. 



• Demolish 422 Bluff 
Street and remove 
basement 

• Excavate and build new 
basement for 310 Euclid 
Avenue 

• Move 310 Euclid Avenue 
onto new basement on 
the front of lot 

• Construct garage west of 
the house 



• New wrap-around porch 

with rounded fiberglass 

columns 

• Window replacements 

• Roof replacement 

• New rear entry 

• New kitchen lay-out 

• Small addition to allow 

for a first-floor bathroom 

 



• Project was bid in two phases 

o Phase 1 – Demolish 422 Bluff Street and move 310 Euclid 

Avenue to the front of the lot – low bid was $87,000 

o Phase 2 – Rehab 310 Euclid, add architectural details and 

construct new garage – low bid was $192,331 

• March & April, 2015 – Bids were received for the two phases 

of the project.  Bids totaled $279,331 

• April 21, 2015 – Since the total bids ($279,331) exceed the 

City Council budget amendment, City staff applied for a COA 

to demolish both structures.   

o Landmarks approved a COA to demolish 422 Bluff Street 

but denied the COA to demolish 310 Euclid Avenue 



• City Council action is needed before the City can enter 

into contracts to complete this project. 

o If approved, the City will need to either allocate 

additional CDBG dollars or CIP dollars to this 

project to complete it 

o If denied, City staff will continue to work with 

Landmarks Commission to resolve this issue.   



• Rehab 310 Euclid Avenue in its current location 

• Move 310 Euclid to a new foundation closer to Bluff 

Street or on a new off-premises property in or near 

the Bluff Street Historic District 

• Selling the house to an investor for $1.00 who would 

complete the rehab, either at its current location or 

another location. 



Questions? 



RESOLUTION APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
CITY OF BELOIT, 200 WEST GRAND AVENUE, LLC, AND

EAST GRAND AVENUE DEVELOPMENT, LLC,
FOR THE SALE OF 80 EAST GRAND AVENUE AND
100 EAST GRAND AVENUE, BELOIT, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of City center property located at 80 East Grand Avenue
and 100 East Grand Avenue, which were formally owned by Kerry Ingredients, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the property at 80 East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue is the
subject of a Stipulation and Settlement Agreement between the State of Wisconsin and Kerry
Ingredients which requires the then current owner to remove certain improvements located on
the site by December 31, 2042; and

WHEREAS, the City is willing to convey 80 East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand
Avenue to East Grand Avenue Development, LLC; and

WHEREAS, East Grand Avenue Development, LLC is willing to accept the conveyance of
80 East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue, fully understanding and acknowledging that
the property is subject to the duties and obligations of the Stipulation and Settlement
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, East Grand Avenue Development, LLC will undertake exterior façade
renovations to further enhance and beautify the City Center.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attached Development
Agreement between the City, 200 West Grand Avenue, LLC and the East Grand Avenue
Development, LLC is hereby approved and the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is
hereby, authorized to execute the same, to further execute any other documents to implement
the terms and conditions thereof, and to do all other things necessary in order to carry out the
purposes of this resolution.

Adopted this 18th day of May, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk
tdh\resolution\East Grand Avenue Development = res = 20150511



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving a Development Agreement between the City of Beloit, 200 West Grand Avenue, LLC and East Grand
Avenue Development, LLC.

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Andrew Janke/Elizabeth Krueger Department(s): Economic Development/City Attorney

Overview/Background Information: The City of Beloit acquired the property located at 80 and 100 East Grand Avenue (“Site B”) in May
of 2009 as part of a negotiated strategy to retain and expand Kerry Ingredients Corporate Research and Development presence in
Beloit.  One of conditions of that agreement was that the City would take possession of 100 East Grand Avenue. The City accepted title
to the building knowing it was accepting the liability associated with the terms and conditions established in the joint Stipulation and
Settlement Agreement between State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Kerry Ingredients entered into in May
of 1999.  That agreement, in part stipulated that the owner of the property, and its assignees, (Currently the City) would be required to
demolish the portion of building located over the river on or before December 31, 2042.  Furthermore, the City at its sole expense
would be required to bear the cost of the demolition.

After the City purchased the property it remained vacant until March 2011 at which time the City leased the majority of the space
available in the building to FatWallet.  The City and FatWallet have enjoyed a mutually agreeable lessee/tenant relationship to the
extent that FatWallet would like to remain in its present location and the City recently extended its lease. This lease extension request
was driven, in part, by the City’s proposed sale of the subject property to Hendricks Commercial Properties (HCP).  By extending the
terms of the Lease, FatWallet, Inc. can be assured that it can remain in its present location under reasonable terms while providing HCP
with a creditworthy tenant that will provide cash flow to the new owners.

The proposed sale of the property to HCP was originally proposed to the City by HCP in August 2014, as part of a multi-property
redevelopment project.  HCP is proposing to renovate the former Kerry manufacturing fac ility they own at 200 West Grand Avenue and
525 Cross Street (Site A) and are proposing to purchase and renovate 80 and 100 East Grand Avenue (“Site B”).

Council held a closed session in August of last year to consider HCP’s proposal and directed staff to proceed with negotiations.  After
several months of negotiations and due diligence the City and HCP have negotiated the attached Development Agreement.

HCP has formed a Limited Liability Company, 200 West Grand Avenue, LLC (“Grand Avenue Development”) that will be the owner and
will redevelop Site A. HCP has also formed a Limited Liability Company, East Grand Avenue Development, LLC (“Site B Owner”) which
will take title to the property at Site B and undertake a comprehensive façade renovation.

Grand Avenue Development proposes to undertake a substantial redevelopment of “Site A” into a mixed use development that may
include commercial and residential uses. Proposed renovation activity could include partial demolitions, substantial reconstruction of
approximately 172,000 square feet of space, and of Site B exterior façade renovations.

Site B Owner proposes to undertake a substantial façade renovation of “Site B” that will be compatible with the surrounding
architecture of the downtown.

Between the two projects total private investment is estimated to be over $8 Million and has the potential to create 3 new businesses
that could create up to 30 new jobs.

The agreement stipulates that the project is contingent upon Site B Owner’s ability to gain DNR’s approval to conduct the proposed
façade renovations for “Site B” with the City providing a letter of support (see attached) of the proposed renovations.  The City shall
convey the site to Site B Owner 45 days of DNR approval but not prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence period. Once the City and
DNR issues Site B Owner with the appropriate permits for Site B construction of the façade renovations will promptly commence and
the developer will diligently pursue completion.

Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner’s obligation under the agreement is subject to its successful Due Diligence investigation
that it must completed within 90 days.  If, within the time permitted, Site B Owner finds fault in its investigation it may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement provided it provides adequate written notice.



Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner acknowledge that once the City conveys Site B all of the duties, obligations, and
responsibilities of the City, as prior owner, as described and set out in the DNR Agreement, reference above, shall become the sole
responsibility of Site B Owner so long as it is the owner of the property. This includes but is not limited to the obligation and cost
associated with removal of the “River Buildings.”  Furthermore, Site B Owner agrees to hold the City indemnity and hold harmless for
any future claims and liabilities relating to the DNR agreement during its term of ownership.

Other Key elements of the Development Agreement include:

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The City will convey 80 and 100 East Grand Avenue (Site B) to East Grand Avenue Development, LLC for $1.00(One Dollar).

2. The cost of all Due Diligence Investigation shall be borne solely by Grand Avenue Development.

3. Conveyance of Site B is subject to the terms of the Lease and Lease extension entered into between the City and FatWallet.

4. The Development Agreement is subject to the standard “boiler plate” terms and conditions.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.): This
economic development project clearly supports Goal #2 since it will result in the retention of jobs and could lead to the creation of new
jobs. The project also supports Goal #4 since it will support community revitalization efforts.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long-term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the
built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
Continued reuse of 80 and 100 East Grand Avenue is an excellent example of compact inner city adaptive reuse.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature
N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems
The proposed development will not impact wetlands or sensitive wildlife.

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently
As a downtown development project it will not contribute to urban sprawl.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.
Action required/Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The sale of the property will cause a reduction of lease revenue into TID #5 but this impact will be minimal
as the closing will be deferred until all the conditions are met. The transfer of the property to HCP eliminates the future liability of
needing to pay for the cost of demolishing the building as is currently being required by the DNR.  This unfunded mandate is estimated
to cost over $2,000,000 at present value.

















CA File #14-1165 Page 1 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____ day of _______________, 2015, by and between

the City of Beloit, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, with its principal place of business located

at 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin 53511 (hereinafter “City”) and 200 West Grand Avenue,

LLC (hereinafter “Grand Avenue Development”), and East Grand Avenue Development, LLC

(“Site B Owner”), each a Wisconsin limited liability company, and each with its principal place of

business located at 525 Third Street, Suite 300, Beloit, Wisconsin 53511. Any reference to

Grand Avenue Development hereafter in this Agreement shall mean 200 West Grand Avenue,

LLC, unless expressly provided to the contrary.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Grand Avenue Development has purchased a redevelopment site in

downtown Beloit; said redevelopment site is located at 200 West Grand Avenue and 525 Cross

Street and is depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto (hereinafter “Site A”); and

WHEREAS, “Site A” is located in one of the key downtown blocks of the City critical to

redevelopment of the City center; and

WHEREAS, “Site A” has been investigated by other potential developers without any

successful results or redevelopment proposals forthcoming; and

WHEREAS, redevelopment of “Site A” would be a major catalyst for the central business

district of the City; and

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of “Site A” has been and remains a goal of the City; and



CA File #14-1165 Page 2 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

WHEREAS, Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner have prepared and submitted

a request to the City to enter into a development agreement that would result in the

substantial remodeling of “Site A” and also result in the acquisition and façade renovation of

additional City-owned property; and

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of other City center property located at 80 East Grand

Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue, which were formally owned by Kerry Ingredients, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the City is willing to convey 80 East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand

Avenue (“Site B”) to East Grand Avenue Development, LLC, an affiliate development entity of

Grand Avenue Development (hereinafter collectively “Site B Owner”); and

WHEREAS, the City and Grand Avenue Development are desirous of having “Site A”

redeveloped into mixed-use developments and “Site B” receive an exterior façade renovation;

and

WHEREAS, the City is willing to convey “Site B” to the Site B Owner in order to provide a

financial incentive to Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner to redevelop and renovate

“Site A” and “Site B” respectively as described herein; and

WHEREAS, Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner acknowledges receipt of the

Stipulation and Settlement Agreement between the State of Wisconsin, Department of Natural

Resources (DNR) and Kerry Ingredients, Inc. (“DNR Agreement”), which DNR Agreement

requires the then current owner of “Site B” to remove certain improvements located upon “Site

B” by December 31, 2042. A copy of said DNR Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated

herein as Exhibit B.



CA File #14-1165 Page 3 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing promises, the mutual

covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City, Grand Avenue

Development, and Site B Owner (collectively as the “Parties” do hereby covenant and agree as

follows:

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION. In anticipation of this Agreement, Grand Avenue

Development has acquired “Site A,” commonly known as the former Kerry manufacturing plant

located at 200 West Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street. Grand Avenue Development intends

to redevelop “Site A,” including partial demolitions and substantial reconstruction. In

consideration of the City conveyance of “Site B” to Site B Owner, Grand Avenue Development

agrees to finalize its redevelopment plans and proceed with substantial renovation to

repurpose the building as a mixed-use development, and Site B Owner agrees to undertake an

agreed exterior façade renovation of “Site B”, where the final renovations will be compatible

with surrounding architecture.

2. REDEVELOPMENT OF “SITE A” and “SITE B”. Grand Avenue Development and

Site B Owner agrees to undertake substantial redevelopment of “Site A” and “Site B”

respectively according to the building plans and project description to be finalized within a

reasonable time period mindful of the need to secure site specific users as well as general

economic conditions affecting redevelopment efforts. Preliminary plans are attached hereto as

Exhibit C and Exhibit D, respectively. The redevelopment of “Site A” and “Site B” will consist of

approximately 172,000 square feet of residential and commercial space at “Site A” and the



CA File #14-1165 Page 4 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

exterior façade renovations at “Site B”. The potential for total private investment in both

projects is estimated at $8,000,000.00 and the redevelopment of “Site A” and “Site B” has the

potential to attract up to three (3) new businesses and create up to thirty (30) new jobs

(collectively, the “Redevelopment Goal”). Such Redevelopment Goal if not met shall not be the

basis for either party to terminate its obligations under this Agreement nor seek any form of

relief against each other. Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner agree to submit final

site and building plans for “Site A” and “Site B” to the City for final review as to compliance with

the City’s building, zoning and architectural review ordinances (“Site Plan Review”). Grand

Avenue Development and Site B Owner agree to pursue all permits and approvals, including any

necessary demolition permits, with due diligence and so as to be able to meet the timelines in

paragraph 4 herein, and the City agrees to conduct prompt Site Plan Review and to issue

building permits as may be required.

3. CONVEYANCE OF “SITE B”. The City agrees to convey to Site B Owner “Site B”

for $1.00 (One and 00/100 Dollars). Said conveyance will occur within forty-five (45) days after

and will be conditioned upon the Wisconsin DNR’s approval of the exterior façade renovation

plans for “Site B.” In no event shall said conveyance occur prior to the expiration of the time

period outlined for the Due Diligence Investigation in paragraph 5 of this Agreement. The City

will offer a letter of support of such plans to the DNR upon the City’s approval of said plans.

Said conveyance will be subject to the terms of the Lease dated March 24, 2011 and the Lease

Extension Agreements dated August 7, 2012 and April 20, 2015, thereto attached (collectively

“Site B Lease”). Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner acknowledges a portion of “Site



CA File #14-1165 Page 5 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

B” is currently leased by the City, as Landlord, to FatWallet, Inc., through April 11, 2019. A copy

of the Site B Lease is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

4. CONSTRUCTION TIMETABLE. Subject to obtaining municipal permit approvals

and DNR approvals to the extent required under the DNR Agreement, Site B Owner shall

promptly commence exterior façade renovations for “Site B” and diligently pursue completion.

5. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT. Grand Avenue Development’s and Site B Owner’s

obligation under this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment of its Due Diligence Investigation to

be completed within ninety (90) days following execution. Due Diligence Investigation for

purposes of this provision means any investigation whether by physical inspection,

environmental audit, survey, title review and internal economic feasibility of Site B (“Due

Diligence Investigation”). Access to Site B shall be provided by the City, subject to the terms

and conditions of the Site B Lease. If within such period of time Grand Avenue Development is

dissatisfied, in its sole discretion, with any of the results from such investigations, it may

thereafter give notice to the City that it has elected to terminate this Agreement and upon such

notice all future rights and obligations under this Agreement shall cease and this Agreement

shall be of no further force and effect. Following either failure to give such notice or the

expiration of the ninety (90) days, Grand Avenue Development’s obligations under this

Agreement shall be further conditioned upon the City’s conveyance by Warranty Deed of Site B

to Site B Owner subject to the exceptions noted on Exhibit G. Such conveyance shall occur after

the Due Diligence Investigation period has expired and in no event later than forty-five (45)

days after the City receives notice that the Wisconsin DNR has approved the exterior façade



CA File #14-1165 Page 6 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

renovation plans for Site B, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties. At the time of

the conveyance by the City to Site B Owner, the City shall also provide to Grand Avenue

Development and Site B Owner a tenant Estoppel Certificate in a form substantially similar to

the form attached hereto as Exhibit F certifying that there are no outstanding defaults or other

uncured defaults by Landlord or Tenant under the terms of such Site B Lease.

The cost of all Due Diligence Investigation shall be borne solely by Grand Avenue

Development. Grand Avenue Development reserves the right to undertake to complete site

and building plans for Site B and to request City Site Plan Review notwithstanding its continuing

right to terminate under this Due Diligence Investigation contingency.

6. CONDITION OF TITLE. Subject to the completion of its Due Diligence

Investigations, Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner hereby acknowledges that it is

familiar with and is satisfied with the condition of the title to “Site B,” including any leases,

covenants, easements or other restrictions of record, and specifically including the provisions of

the DNR Agreement as set out in Exhibit B.

7. ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND INDEMNITY. Site B Owner acknowledges that upon

the City conveyance of “Site B,” all of the duties, obligations and responsibilities of the City, as

prior owner of the “River Buildings … together with the pilings and foundation,” as described

and set out in the DNR Agreement, shall become the responsibility of Site B Owner so long as

Site B Owner is the owner, and Site B Owner hereafter agrees to indemnify and forever hold

the City harmless from any and all claims or liability arising out of said DNR Agreement during

the period of Site B Owner’s ownership.



CA File #14-1165 Page 7 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

8. RECORDABLE DOCUMENT. This Agreement may be recorded with the Register

of Deeds for Rock County, Wisconsin.

9. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF GRAND AVENUE DEVELOPMENT AND

SITE B OWNER.

(a) Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner represent and warrant to

the City that each is a limited liability company duly organized and

existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin and that each is in good

standing with that state.

(b) Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner represent and warrant to

the City that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the

consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, and

the execution and delivery of the documents required to be executed,

delivered, or acknowledged by Grand Avenue Development and Site B

Owner at the closing will not violate any provision of applicable local,

state, or federal law.

10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF CITY.

(a) The City represents and warrants to Grand Avenue Development and Site

B Owner that it is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing

under the laws of the State of Wisconsin.

(b) The City represents and warrants to Grand Avenue Development and Site

B Owner that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the



CA File #14-1165 Page 8 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Agreement has

been duly approved by the City and is binding upon it in accord with its

terms.

11. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner prior to

the waiver of Due Diligence Investigation, will have adopted an affirmative action plan to

increase in its partners, associates, and employees members of under-represented groups in all

of its departments, job classifications, and salary categories. Grand Avenue Development and

Site B Owner agrees to require its general contractor and first tier subcontractors to adopt an

affirmative action plan. This provision is inserted herein in compliance with Section 1.09 of the

Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to carry out the

intent of that ordinance.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION. In connection with its obligations hereunder, Grand

Avenue Development and Site B Owner agrees that it will not discriminate against any qualified

employee or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color, national origin,

ancestry, religion, age, marital status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation. Grand Avenue

Development and Site B Owner shall require its building contractor and subcontractors to agree

not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,

national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation. This

provision is inserted herein in compliance with Section 1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances

of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted consistent therewith.



CA File #14-1165 Page 9 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

13. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by and

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin and the Parties agree that the

Circuit Court of Rock County shall have personal jurisdiction for any dispute hereunder.

14. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement

shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the

Parties regarding this transaction. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into

this Agreement.

16. AMENDMENTS. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon any

party hereto until such amendment is reduced to writing and executed by the Parties.

17. AUTHORITY. Each person signing this Agreement represents that he or she is

authorized by his or her organization to execute this Agreement on behalf of that organization.

18. FORCE MAJEURE. No party shall be responsible to the other parties for any

losses if a party’s fulfillment of any of the terms of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by

civil disorders, wars, strikes, floods, fires, acts of God, or by any other cause not within the

control of the party whose performance was interfered with or which, by the exercise of

reasonable diligence, such party is unable to prevent such delay, including whether or not the

reason is included in the class of causes enumerated above (collectively “Force Majeure

Event”). The time for performance by a party in all instances shall be extended for the period of

delay occasioned by any Force Majeure Event.



CA File #14-1165 Page 10 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

19. ASSIGNMENT. Grand Avenue Development nor Site B Owner may not assign its

interest in this Agreement to a third party without the prior written consent of the City.

Notwithstanding the above, following completion of the Redevelopment detailed in Section 2,

Grand Avenue Development or Site B Owner shall be free to sell or convey the properties or

property and any obligation under the DNR Agreement shall thereafter pass with such

conveyance.

20. INDEMNIFICATION. Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner, their

successors, and assigns shall indemnify, defend and hold the City, its officers, agents, and

employees harmless from any liability for any claims, including attorney’s fees, arising out of

the acts or omissions of Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner, their officers, agents, or

employees in their respective performance under this Agreement. The City shall indemnify and

hold Grand Avenue Development or Site B Owner harmless from any liability for any claims,

including attorney’s fees, arising out of the acts or omissions of the City, its officers, agents, and

employees in its performance under this Agreement.

21. NO PARTNERSHIP CREATED. This Agreement does not create any partnership or

joint venture between the Parties hereto, or render any party liable for any of the debts or

obligations of the other party. No third party beneficiary is created hereby. The City shall have

no obligation or liability to any lending institution, architect, contractor, subcontractor, or other

party retained by Grand Avenue Development or Site B Owner to assist Grand Avenue

Development or Site B Owner in the performance of its obligation under the terms and

conditions of this Agreement. Grand Avenue Development and Site B Owner specifically agrees



CA File #14-1165 Page 11 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

that no representation shall be made to any third party that Grand Avenue Development nor

Site B Owner and the City are partners or joint venturers.

22. HEADINGS. The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience and

reference only and do not define or limit the scope or content of this Agreement or affect any

of its provisions.

23. DEFAULT AND NOTICE OF DEFAULT. Any party seeking to enforce its rights

hereunder may do so only after giving advance written notice to the other party reasonably

identifying the alleged breach and giving the breaching party 30 days in which to cure the

alleged breach. If the alleged breach cannot be remedied within 30 days, then the party

required to remedy shall undertake to commence within such 30-day period and shall diligently

pursue the cure until completion. In the event that any party institutes an action to enforce its

rights hereunder, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover all costs,

including reasonable attorney’s and professional fees which may have been incurred in bringing

such action. Each of the Parties to this Agreement expressly waive and disclaim any right to

recover indirect or other consequential damages arising out of the breach by another party to

this Agreement. In the event of a material breach by either party, the nonbreaching party

retains as an available remedy, the remedy of rescission of this Agreement. The exercise of the

remedy of rescission shall not cause the return of any monies previously paid by the City to

Grand Development hereunder.



CA File #14-1165 Page 12 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

24. NOTICES. Notices to the Parties to this Agreement shall be as follows:

To the City: City of Beloit
Attention: City Manager
100 State Street
Beloit, WI 53511

To Grand Avenue
Development: 200 West Grand Avenue, LLC

c/o Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC
Attn: Rob Gerbitz
525 Third Street, Suite 300
Beloit, WI 53511

To Site B Owner: East Grand Avenue Development, LLC
c/o Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC
Attn: Rob Gerbitz
525 Third Street, Suite 300
Beloit, WI 53511

25. COUNTERPART. This Development Agreement may be executed in several

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall

together constitute one and the same Development Agreement. Any counterparts of this

Development Agreement may be executed and delivered by any party by facsimile or by e-mail

transmission in portable document format (“PDF”) and any document so executed and

delivered shall be considered an original for all purposes.

Signature Page to Follow



CA File #14-1165 Page 13 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed all the

day and year written above.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Larry N. Arft, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:______________________________
Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC Deputy City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:__________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

I hereby certify that there are sufficient funds
available to pay the liability incurred by the City
of Beloit pursuant to this Agreement.

By:__________________________________
Eric R. Miller, City Comptroller

EAST GRAND AVENUE DEVELOPMENT, LLC
By Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, its

sole member

By:__________________________________
Diane Hendricks, Manager & CEO

200 WEST GRAND AVENUE, LLC
By: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, its
sole member

By:_______________________________
Diane Hendricks, Manager & CEO

tdh/file/14-1165/Dev Agr=150508

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)SS

COUNTY OF ROCK )

Personally appeared before me this ____ day of ______________, 2015, the above-
named Larry N. Arft, City Manager and Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk, to me known to be
such City Manager and Clerk of the City of Beloit, and to me known to be the persons who
executed the foregoing agreement as such officers of said entity, by its authority.

Elizabeth A. Krueger
Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin
My commission is permanent.



CA File #14-1165 Page 14 of 14 Development Agreement 80 and 100 W. Grand Avenue

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)SS

COUNTY OF _______________ )

Personally came before me this ________ day of ________________, 2015, the above-named
Diane Hendricks, to me known to be such Manager & CEO of Hendricks Commercial Properties,
LLC the sole member of East Grand Avenue Development, LLC and to me known to be the
person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, ___________ County, ___________
My Commission is permanent. If not, state
expiration date:

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)SS

COUNTY OF _______________ )

Personally came before me this ________ day of ________________, 2015, the above-named
Diane Hendricks, to me known to be such Manager & CEO of Hendricks Commercial Properties,
LLC the sole member of 200 West Grand Avenue Development, LLC and to me known to be the
person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, ___________ County, ___________
My Commission is permanent. If not, state
expiration date:



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT LIST

Exhibit Description

A Depiction of 220 West Grand Avenue & 525 Cross Street

B Stipulation & Settlement Agreement between WDNR & Kerry

C Preliminary plans of Site A (200 West Grand Avenue & 525 Cross Street)

D Preliminary plans of Site B (80 East Grand Avenue & 100 East Grand Avenue

E Lease dated 3/24/11 and amendments between the City and FatWallet, Inc. (Site B)
(80 East Grand Avenue & 100 East Grand Avenue)

F Tenant Estoppel Certificate

G Site B Exceptions to Warranty Deed



EXHIBIT A
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC





EXHIBIT B
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC













































































































































EXHIBIT C
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC















EXHIBIT D
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC













EXHIBIT E
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC















































CA File Number: 11-1057 Page 1 of 4 Second Lease Extension Agreement
80 & 100 East Grand Avenue

SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT

This SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT is made on this 21st day of April, 2015, between
the City of Beloit, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (hereinafter “City” or “Landlord”) and FatWallet,
Inc., a Wisconsin corporation (hereinafter “Tenant”).

WHEREAS, the City and Storm Concepts, Inc., d/b/a FatWallet, previously entered into a Lease
Agreement on March 24, 2011 (hereinafter “Lease”) and extended the terms of said Lease through April
11, 2013 by virtue of a written extension agreement dated January 27, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the City and FatWallet, Inc., successor and/or assignee in interest to the Lease,
entered into a Lease Extension Agreement dated August 7, 2012 which extended the terms and
conditions of the Lease through April 11, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Lease was extended through April 11, 2015 by virtue of a letter from Fat Wallet,
Inc., dated February 3, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Lease was further extended through April 11, 2016 by virtue of a letter from Fat
Wallet, Inc., dated February 3, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City and FatWallet, Inc., are desirous of further extending and amending the
terms and conditions of the Lease, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and promises

contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which they

acknowledge, the City and FatWallet, Inc., agree as follows:

1. RECITALS INCORPORATED. The Recitals listed above are hereby incorporated into this SECOND
LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT.

2. RELATION TO LEASE, AS AMENDED. To the extent that there is a conflict between any provision
of this SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT, the Lease, as amended, and the Lease Extension
Agreement dated August 7, 2012, the language and provisions of this SECOND LEASE EXTENSION
AGREEMENT shall control and prevail.

3. Section 1.45 is hereby created to read as follows:

“1.45 Term of Second Lease Extension Agreement. The term of the Lease
as amended by the SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT shall be
for one year, commencing on the 12th day of April, 2016 and ending on
April 11, 2017. Tenant shall have the option to extend the Lease for
two additional one-year periods, covering periods April 12, 2017
through April 11, 2018 and April 12, 2018 through April 11, 2019, on
the same terms and conditions as set out in the Lease, as amended or
as otherwise provided in the SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT.
Tenant shall deliver written notice to Landlord of its intent to exercise



CA File Number: 11-1057 Page 2 of 4 Second Lease Extension Agreement
80 & 100 East Grand Avenue

this option no later than two months prior to the end of the initial
term or any renewal term.”

4. Section 1.5 of the Lease Extension Agreement, dated August 7, 2012, entitled “Rent” is hereby
replaced in its entirety to read as follows:

“1.5 Rent.

a. Tenant is currently leasing 24,818 square feet of the Premises
described above. For the initial term of the SECOND LEASE
EXTENSION AGREEMENT, Tenant shall pay the base rental rate at
the annual rate of Five and 065/100 Dollars ($5.065) per square
foot. The base rental rate shall be increased by three percent (3%)
for each one-year extension. Rent shall be payable in twelve (12)
equal installments. Tenant shall pay rent on or before the first
business day of each calendar month.

b. The Parties acknowledge single metering points for the gas, sewer
and water at 80 East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue,
and each building has an electric meter. Both 80 East Grand
Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue had been vacant for twenty-
two (22) months previous to the Tenants occupancy, and the
Parties agree that the Landlord will pay a “base” utility fee of Nine
Hundred Thirteen and 97/100 Dollars ($913.97) per month. Said
base amount reflects thirty-nine percent (39%) of the average
vacant utility charges for gas, electric, sewer and water for both 80
East Grand Avenue and 100 East Grand Avenue. Tenant shall be
responsible for all utility payments and shall be entitled to deduct
the Landlord’s base payment obligation from its monthly rental
payment to the Landlord. The Landlord shall not lease nor occupy
the balance of the 100 East Grand Avenue premises without the
written consent of the Tenant, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall maintain the 100 East Grand
Avenue premises at 60 degrees or more.

Term
Square
Footage

Rent/
Sq Ft

Annual Base
Rent

Base Rent
per Month

Utility
Credit

Net Rent
Payment

4/12/2016 - 4/11/2017 24,818 $5.065 $125,703.17 $10,475.26 ($913.97) $9,561.29

4/12/2017 - 4/11/2018
(if lease is extended)

24,818 $5.217 $129,475.51 $10,789.63 ($913.97) $9,875.66

4/12/2018 - 4/11/2019
(if lease is extended)

24,818 $5.374 $133,371.93 $11,114.33 ($913.97) $10,200.36

”



CA File Number: 11-1057 Page 3 of 4 Second Lease Extension Agreement
80 & 100 East Grand Avenue

5. Section 1.8 entitled “Real Estate Taxes” of the Lease, as amended, is hereby replaced in its
entirety to read as follows:

“1.8 Real Estate Taxes. In addition to the rental amounts set out in section
1.5, Tenant shall pay a monthly amount equal to Six Hundred Fifty and
00/100 Dollars ($650.00) for real estate taxes. Said monthly payment
shall be payable on or before April 12, 2016 and shall continue on or
before the twelfth day of each month thereafter, including any
renewal or extension period authorized pursuant to section 1.45. This
monthly payment is not subject to any escalation as is otherwise
applicable to base rental that is due under the Lease.”

6. LANDLORD’S RIGHT TO ENTRY. The first sentence of Section 16 of the Lease is hereby deleted
in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“Following reasonable notice to Tenant, Landlord may enter upon the Premises
as often as Landlord reasonably may deem necessary for the purposes of
performing such maintenance and repairs as Landlord reasonably may deem
necessary or lawfully may be required to perform, inspecting the Premises,
offering the Premises for lease (but only during the period which commences
two (2) months prior to the expiration of the then current Term, including any
Extension Terms, provided that Tenant has not exercised an Option to extend,
as set forth in Section 1.5(d) hereof) or offering the Premises for sale.”

7. QUIET ENJOYMENT. Section 20.1 of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced
with the following:

“20.1 Landlord's Covenant: Landlord covenants and agrees that Tenant shall

have the peaceful and quiet possession and enjoyment of the Premises

(subject to all mortgages and other matters to which this Lease, is or shall

become, subordinate in accordance with the provisions of Section 21) for the

conduct of its business operations during the Term of this Lease, including any

Extension Terms, without hindrance by Landlord, any successor in interest to

Landlord, or any other party whatsoever.”

8. EFFECT OF AMENDMENT. Except to the extent the Lease, as amended, is expressly

modified by this SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT, the remaining terms and

provisions of the Lease, as amended, shall remain unmodified and in full force and

effect.



CA File Number: 11-1057 Page 4 of 4 Second Lease Extension Agreement
80 & 100 East Grand Avenue

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their properly authorized representatives to
execute and seal this SECOND LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT on the date as set forth above.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Larry N. Arft, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:__________________________________
Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC, Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:__________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

tdh/files/11-1057/Second Lease Extension Agreement = 20150406

FATWALLET, INC.

By:__________________________________
Seiichiro Sonoda, Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT F
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC



Page 1 of 2

EXHIBIT F

FORM OF ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

(Landlord) East Grand Avenue Development, LLC
Attn: Ms. Lori Goff
525 Third Street, Suite 300
Beloit, WI 53511

Re: Lease for space at __________________

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned (“Tenant”) hereby certifies to _____ (“Landlord”), and East Grand
Avenue Development, LLC, and its successors and assigns (collectively, “Purchaser”), and any
lender providing financing to the Purchaser (“Lender”), as of the date of this Certificate:

1. Tenant is the Lessee under that certain Lease dated _____________ relating to
the building(s) located at ____________ (the “Premises”), together with any amendments
thereto (collectively, the “Lease”).

2. The dates of all amendments to the Lease are as follows:
.

3. There are no other agreements, oral or in writing, between Landlord and Tenant
with respect to the Premises excepted as identified above.

4. The Lease is in full force and effect.

5. Tenant is not in default under the Lease nor does any circumstance currently
exist that, but for the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default
by Tenant under the Lease.

6. No default exists under the Lease by Landlord nor does any circumstance
currently exist that, but for the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute
a default by Landlord under the Lease.

7. Tenant has no uncured claims or demand against the Landlord, except as noted
below:

.



Page 2 of 2

8. Monthly base rent is equal to $_________________ and has been paid through
_________________, 20___. CAM/operating expense charges are paid as follows:
____________________. CAM/operating expense charges have been paid through
___________, and a completed reconciliation for 2014 has been provided by Landlord and
approved by Tenant.

9. Tenant’s security deposit held by Landlord is $______________________.

10. Tenant has no right nor option to purchase any portion of the Premises or the
real property upon which the Premises are situated.

11. The Lease commenced as of ______________ and expires as of _____________.

12. Tenant has no right to renew or extend the Lease, except for
________________.

13. Tenant has accepted possession of the Premises leased under the Lease, and all
improvements, alterations and other work to be performed or constructed by Landlord under
the Lease have been completed and accepted by Tenant.

14. Tenant is not entitled to any future partial or total abatement of rent or other
amounts due under the Lease.

15. Tenant has not assigned any of its rights under the Lease.

16. The address for notices to Tenant is as set forth in the Lease.

Tenant acknowledges that Purchaser and Lender will rely on the representations and
agreements made by Tenant in this Estoppel Certificate in connection with the acquisition and
financing of the property of which the Premises are a part, and Tenant agrees that Purchaser
and Lender may so rely on such representations and agreements.

Dated: __________________, 2015

TENANT

____________________________________,
a(n) _______________ _________________

By:

(Print Name) (Title)



EXHIBIT G
to

Development Agreement

between
City of Beloit

&
East Grand Avenue Development, LLC



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT G

Exceptions

1. Stipulation and Settlement Agreement dated May 18, 1999 and recorded May 5, 2009
as Document #1862070 by and between State of Wisconsin, Department of Natural
Resources and Kerry Ingredients, Inc. and Assignment and Assumption Agreement of
said Agreement dated May 1, 2009 and recorded May 12, 2009 as Document #1862998
at 8:49 a.m. by and between Kerry, Inc. and City of Beloit.

2. Right of the State of Wisconsin and the public in any portion of the land between the
land patented to a private owner and the bulkhead line established on Rock River.

3. Underground Gas and Electric Line Easement, dated September 29, 1991, and recorded
September 26, 1991 on Card 498, Image 292, as Document #1142199, given by Arthur T.
Donaldson, to Wisconsin Power and Light Company.

4. Right of Way and Easement Agreement, dated November 15, 1984, and recorded
November 21, 1984, on Card 191, Image 872, as Document #996626, given by Arthur T.
Donald son to Tymar Industries, Ltd.

5. Underground Fiber Optic Cable Easement Agreement, dated May 25, 2012, and
recorded June 4, 2012 as Document #1949263, given by the City of Beloit, a Wisconsin
municipal corporation to Windstream KDI, Inc., a Kentucky corporation.

6. Rights of the public in any portion of the subject premises lying below the ordinary high
water mark, and in the waters of, and airspace over the Rock River, and rights of the
government to regulate the use of the shore and riparian rights.

*****



RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN BELOIT COLLEGE AND THE CITY OF BELOIT

REGARDING POWERHOUSE RIVERWALK PROJECT

WHEREAS, in connection with the College’s redevelopment of the Blackhawk Generating Station
(the “Powerhouse”), the College approached the City with a plan to transform bicycle and pedestrian
travel in the area of the Powerhouse by constructing an 850’ public river walk along the west side of the
redeveloped Powerhouse, filling in a key gap in the City’s trail system, moving bike and pedestrian traffic
away from USH 51 / Pleasant Street (hereinafter “Project”); and

WHEREAS, §85.021, Wis. Stats., authorizes the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation
(“DOT”) to administer a program to award grants of assistance (the “Transportation Alternatives
Program” or “TAP”) to certain political subdivisions, state agencies, counties, local government units,
and Indian tribes consistent with 23 U.S.C. 213, to “expand travel choice, strengthen the local economy,
improve the quality of life, and protect the environment."; and

WHEREAS, under a TAP grant, design and construction costs are funded with 80% federal/state
funding, up to a maximum of $1,009,158, with the project sponsor agreeing to provide the remaining
20% and any funds in excess of the federal/state funding maximum, in accordance with the TAP
guidelines.

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to act as the sponsoring agency for the Project (the “Project
Sponsor”) and enter into an agreement with the DOT under §§86.25(1), (2) and (3) and §66.0301 of
Wisconsin Statutes for the purpose of receiving a TAP grant; and

WHEREAS, the DOT has approved a TAP grant for the Project in the maximum amount of
$1,009,158, conditioned upon the Project Sponsor providing a 20% local match ($252,289).

WHEREAS, the City and the College wish to outline each of its various responsibilities related to
the Project, including cost sharing in the attached Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin, does hereby approve the attached Memorandum of Understanding between Beloit College
and the City of Beloit and that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is hereby, authorized to
execute the same, to further execute any other documents to implement the terms and conditions
thereof, and to do all other things necessary in order to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Adopted this 18th day of May, 2015

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

________________________________________
ATTEST: Charles M. Haynes, President

_________________________________
Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution authorizing the City Manager of the City of Beloit to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding with Beloit College regarding the Powerhouse Riverwalk Project.

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Larry Arft Department(s): City Manager

Overview/Background Information:

The City of Beloit, in coordination with Beloit College, applied for and received a Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)
grant from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) for the construction of an 850’ public river walk along the
west side of the Powerhouse redevelopment project. The MOU outlines the various responsibilities of the City of Beloit,
including the cost sharing, for the project.

Key Issues (maximum of 6):

1. The City of Beloit has agreed to be the sponsoring agent for the project and has entered into an agreement with
WisDOT for the purpose of receiving the grant (Exhibit B). The grant agreement is conditioned upon the local
government providing a 20% local match.

2. The City of Beloit and Beloit College will jointly lead the design and construction of the Powerhouse project. The
College will have the opportunity throughout the project for review and concurrence. The following points of
review/concurrence are outlined in the MOU: Design Intent Preliminary meeting, Geometry Plan Review, 30%
Plan Review, 60% Plan and Detail Review, 90% complete review, Final Plans/Specs. Review, and Bid Review.

3. Total Grant Amount: $1,261,447
Federal/State Funded - 80% $1,009,158 (max. cap)
Local Share – 20% $ 252,289

4. The City of Beloit and Beloit College have agreed to equally split the local share of the project costs
($126,144.50 for the City of Beloit and $126,144.50 for Beloit College). Should the project costs exceed the
grant, the City of Beloit has agreed to equally split the additional costs, subject to the City’s total maximum
contribution of $250,000 for the entire project.

5. The project requires the transfer of property or easements to the City. The costs of requiring easements or other
right of way access are not a component of the grant. The City has agreed to equally split with Beloit College
any costs associated with such acquisitions, up to the total maximum contribution of $250,000 from the City.

6. The ownership, operation and maintenance of the project will be the sole responsibility of the City of Beloit. The
project will be incorporated into the City’s existing trail system.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources to further
Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

Provides a link to the existing multi-modal recreational path along the river to be used by both pedestrians
and bicyclists.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems



Revised 01-10-08

N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

Improves the functionality of the Riverwalk bike path by providing a direct link to the new Powerhouse activity
and recreational center.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends approving the resolution to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with Beloit
College in regards to the Powerhouse Riverwalk Project (project 5989-05-25/26)

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

The City of Beloit and Beloit College have agreed to equally split the local share cost of $252,289. In addition the City of Beloit has agreed
to equally split any additional costs above and beyond the grant funding up to a total maximum contribution of $250,000. Any additional
costs about the total maximum contribution from the City will be the sole responsibility of Beloit College.



 
 

                                 700 College Street, Beloit WI  53511 - 608-363-2408 
 

 
 
To: Michael F Flesch, P.E., City Engineer 

Jason Dupuis, P.E., Transportation Engineer 

From: Daniel Schooff, Secretary of the College and Chief of Staff 

Date: May 7, 2015 

Re: Memorandum of Understanding for the Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 
 

 
Thank you for the opportunity for the City of Beloit and Beloit College to partner in securing                 
funds for Powerhouse Riverwalk. Moving this 850’ stretch of a public bike and pedestrian path               
away from a busy Hwy 51 to the river side of the reconstructed Powerhouse will be a great                  
addition to an already beautiful riverfront. 
 
Background on Powerhouse Project 
 
Beloit College seeks to convert the Blackhawk Generating Station, a riverfront, decommissioned            
100-year-old power plant, into a vibrant student union and recreation center – The Powerhouse.              
Success will yield a signature college and community facility which advances the college’s             
mission, connects the college and community, and enhances the college’s reputation through            
innovative and creative use of space, sustainability, and its impact on the lives of our students. 
 
The college entered into an agreement with Alliant/WPL in summer of 2014 to transfer              
ownership of the power plant after the $38 million dollar fundraising goal has been met and                
Alliant/WPL had removed the unneeded equipment from the plant. That fundraising effort            
continues to go well and will continue for the next 18 to 24 months. The public riverwalk has                  
been an incredibly important part of the conversations the college is having with friends and               
alumni. 
 
Background on TAP Grant 
 
With a shared goal of bringing public access to the Rock River and to improve the bike and                  
pedestrian paths in the area, the city and college cooperatively applied for a Transportation              
Alternative Project grant from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation in December 2013.            
In February 2014 we were notified that we were invited to submit a phase two application and in                  
August 2014 received notification that of the $13.3 million awarded statewide, the Powerhouse             
Riverwalk project was awarded $1,009,158. 
  

 
 



 
 
 
Powerhouse Riverwalk MOU Memo 
Page 2 

 

 
 
Memorandum of Understanding Details 
 
The latest memorandum of understanding (MOU) draft is attached to this memo. We know that               
with our continued partnership on this project, complicated questions will be worked through             
and a successful project will be completed. 
 
The latest draft of the MOU attempts to put in legal terms what is a consensus around the key                   
issues to ensure that this project is delivered on time and under budget. 
 

❏ Both the City of Beloit and Beloit College have a shared goal and share responsibility to do                 
everything in our power to bring the project in or under budget. 

❏ The State and Federal government are funding 80% of the projects costs. The remaining              
20% would be split evenly between the city and college. ($125,000 from each party.) 

❏ An additional $125,000 from each party should be considered a construction contingency.            
It should be our shared goal to not use these resources if at all possible. 

❏ Beyond this construction contingency, additional capital costs will be the college’s           
responsibility.  

❏ Coordination with the college’s architectural, engineering, and construction team         
designing and building the Powerhouse project is vital. 

❏ Early in the project, agreement will be required and not assumed. This will serve to help                
keep the project on or under budget and will prevent delays later in the project. 

❏ During the construction phase, changes will need to be agreed to by both parties in a                
more streamlined fashion to prevent delays. 

 
Thank you for your continued partnership on what we know will be a tremendous asset for the                 
Beloit community when completed. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CA File #14-1230 Page 1 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN BELOIT COLLEGE AND CITY OF BELOIT 

REGARDING POWERHOUSE RIVERWALK PROJECT (Project 5989-05-25/26) 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (herein called this “Agreement”) is made 

and entered into as of this ___ day of _____________________, 2015, between the City of 

Beloit, Wisconsin  (herein called “City”), and Beloit College (herein called “College”) (City and 

College are sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party” and together as the “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the College’s redevelopment of the Blackhawk Generating 

Station (the “Powerhouse”), the College approached the City with a plan to transform bicycle 

and pedestrian travel in the area of the Powerhouse by constructing an 850’ public river walk 

along the west side of the redeveloped Powerhouse, filling in a key gap in the City’s trail system, 

moving bike and pedestrian traffic away from USH 51 / Pleasant Street (hereinafter “Project”); 

and 

WHEREAS, §85.021, Wis. Stats., authorizes the State of Wisconsin Department of 

Transportation (“DOT”) to administer a program to award grants of assistance  (the 

“Transportation Alternatives Program” or “TAP”) to certain political subdivisions, state agencies, 

counties, local government units, and Indian tribes consistent with 23 U.S.C. 213, to “expand 

travel choice, strengthen the local economy, improve the quality of life, and protect the 

environment."; and 

WHEREAS, under a TAP grant, design and construction costs are funded with 80% 

federal/state funding, up to a maximum of $1,009,158, with the project sponsor agreeing to 

provide the remaining 20% and any funds in excess of the federal/state funding maximum, in 

accordance with the TAP guidelines. 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to act as the sponsoring agency for the Project (the 

“Project Sponsor”) and enter into an agreement with the DOT under §§86.25(1), (2) and (3) and 

§66.0301 of Wisconsin Statutes for the purpose of receiving a TAP grant; and 

WHEREAS, the DOT has approved a TAP grant for the Project in the maximum amount of 

$1,009,158, conditioned upon the Project Sponsor providing a 20% local match ($252,289). 

WHEREAS, the City and the College wish to outline each of its various responsibilities 

related to the Project, including cost sharing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing promises, the mutual 

covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and College do hereby 

covenant and agree as follows: 

1. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE.  The Parties shall cooperatively undertake their 

responsibilities outlined in this Agreement for the construction of the Project. It is a desire of 



CA File #14-1230 Page 2 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

the Parties to bring public access to the Rock River and to improve the bicycle and pedestrian 

paths in the Project area. 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION.  The Parties are working collaboratively to construct the 

Project, an 850’ public river walk along the west side of the redeveloped Powerhouse, filling in a 

key gap in the City’s trail system, moving bike and pedestrian traffic away from Highway 51 and 

alongside the Rock River. A rendering illustrating the location of the Project is attached hereto 

as Exhibit A and is incorporated herein by reference. 

3. TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM.  The Parties understand that the 

City has agreed to serve as the Project Sponsor and, in cooperation with the College, has applied 

for and received a TAP grant from the DOT in the amount of $1,009,158 (the “Grant”), 

conditioned upon the Project Sponsor providing a 20% local match of $252,289 towards said 

Project.  The Parties further understand that any costs exceeding $1,009,158 are the 

responsibilities of the Parties.  Further conditions and responsibilities of the TAP grant are 

outlined in the “State/Municipal Agreement for a State-Let Transportation Alternatives Program 

Project” which was entered into by the State of Wisconsin and the City after approval of the City 

Council on December 15, 2014, and attached hereto as Exhibit B is incorporated herein by 

reference (the “Grant Agreement”). 

4. COST SHARING.  The Parties wish to outline their respective responsibilities for 

cost sharing with regard to the Project as follows: 

a. Total Budget.  The total budget for the Project is expected to be $1,261,447 of 

which $1,009,158 will be covered by the Grant as outlined above.  The remaining portion 

of the Project costs (the “Non-grant Funded Costs”), currently estimated to be $252,289, 

shall be divided between the parties as outlined herein. 

b. Costs.  The Parties agree to split equally the Non-grant Funded Costs, currently 

estimated to be $252,289 (hereinafter “Current Estimate”).  Should the Non-grant 

Funded Costs exceed the Current Estimate, the Parties agree to split equally the costs in 

excess of the Current Estimate, subject to the City’s maximum contribution to the 

Project of $250,000 (hereinafter “Maximum Contribution”).  Any costs exceeding the 

Maximum Contribution shall be the sole responsibility of the College.  At all times during 

the planning, design and project management phases of the Project, each Party shall act 

in good faith and with commercially reasonable efforts to meet the budget jointly 

established for the Project by the Parties and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

set forth herein, all Non-grant Funded Costs shall be subject to the approval process 

described in this Section, Section 7 and Section 8. 

c. Benchmarks.  With a shared commitment to keeping the Project at or under 

budget, the Parties agree that the following benchmarks are critical to such result.  The 

benchmarks are as follows: 

(1) Design Intent Preliminary meeting; 



CA File #14-1230 Page 3 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

(2) Geometry Plan Review at 10% [review of the geometric layout and 

regulating line logic relating to the Powerhouse]; 

(3) Plan Review at 30%; 

(4) Plan and Detail Review at 60% [including lighting concept and furniture [if 

any] review]; 

(5) Complete Review at 90%;  

(6) Final Plans and Specifications Review; and 

(7) Bid Review 

d. Consent to Proceed.  The Parties shall each provide their respective decision, in 

writing, whether to proceed or not to proceed with the Project at each benchmark.  The 

Parties agree to use good faith in reviewing the Project and to make all efforts to provide 

their respective consent within twenty-one (21) days of written notification that the 

applicable benchmark has been reached.  Should the Project not move forward for any 

reason, the costs shall be equally divided between the Parties, up to the Maximum 

Contribution of the City. 

 

e. State of Wisconsin Review Costs.  The Parties understand that it is expected that 

if the Project does not proceed, the State of Wisconsin is estimated to have costs of 

$157,681 for design and review of the Project.  Should the State require reimbursement 

of those expenses, the Parties agree to split the cost of such reimbursement equally.  

5. EASEMENTS OR CONVEYANCE OF LAND.  The Project will require the transfer of 

property or easements to the City.  The College agrees to: a) secure access and temporary 

easements to the Project site if such access or easements are needed prior to the College taking 

ownership of the Project site; b) provide permanent easements or convey such land necessary 

to design or construct the Project; and c) work with any adjoining property owners to secure 

easements across their respective properties for construction of the Project.  The Parties 

understand the costs for acquiring such easements or other right of way access are not a 

component of the grant funding and that any costs associated with such acquisition shall be split 

equally, up to the Maximum Contribution of the City.  

6. MAINTENANCE.  The ownership, operation and maintenance of the Project shall 

be the sole responsibility of the City and incorporated into the City’s trail system. 

7. DESIGN.  The design of the Project will be guided by the College’s proposed 

design of the Powerhouse building.  The Parties agree to facilitate the consultation and 

coordination between the design (architectural and engineering) and construction firms 

selected for the Project and the design (architectural and engineering) and construction firms 

selected for the Powerhouse building.   

 



CA File #14-1230 Page 4 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

8. MATERIAL CHANGES.  Following the College’s final consent to the Plans, 

Specifications and Estimates Review as described in the preceding paragraph, the Plans and 

Specifications for the Project shall not be changed in any material respect, nor shall any aspect 

of the Project’s design be altered without the College’s written consent.  In the event the City 

desires to propose any material change to the Plans and Specifications and/or any aspect of the 

Project’s design, the City shall provide the College with written notice of the proposed 

change(s).  If the College notifies the City of any objection to the proposed change(s) within 

fifteen (15) working days of receipt of such written notification, the parties shall work together 

in good faith and with commercially reasonable effort to resolve the objections.  If the College 

fails to timely notify the City of any objection to the proposed change(s), the College shall be 

deemed to have approved the proposed change(s) and the Project shall proceed as planned. 

9. REIMBURSEMENT.  The College agrees to reimburse the City for all expenses 

owed by the College in connection with this Agreement within 30 days of notification by the City 

provided that the College shall have the right to raise reasonable objections to any such invoice, 

in which case the Parties shall work together in good faith to resolve the objections. 

10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with any exhibits hereto, 

integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and 

supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties or their predecessors in 

interest with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. 

11. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and, if any one or 

more provisions may be determined to be judicially unenforceable, in whole or in part, the 

remaining provisions, and any partially unenforceable provision, to the extent enforceable, in 

any jurisdiction, shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable if and to the extent that the 

economic and legal substance of the transactions contemplated is not materially adversely 

affected in any matter as to any party and shall be construed and enforced so as to effectuate 

the intent of the entire Agreement, including the wholly or partially unenforceable provision, to 

the maximum extent legally permissible. 

 

12. AMENDMENTS. Any amendments to this Agreement shall be effective only when 

duly executed by the Parties. 

13. ATTORNEYS’ FEES. In the event that suit is brought for the enforcement of this 

Agreement or as the result of any alleged breach thereof, or any other court action occurs 

arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party or parties in such suit shall be entitled to 

recover their reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses from the losing party or parties, 

and any judgment or decree rendered in such proceedings shall include an award thereof. 

14. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY RIGHTS. This Agreement is entered into for the 

sole benefit of the Parties and no other parties are intended to be direct or incidental 

beneficiaries of this Agreement and no third party shall have any right in, under or to this 

Agreement. 



CA File #14-1230 Page 5 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

15. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin with venue in Rock County. 

16. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT. Neither Party may assign or transfer their 

respective rights or obligations under this Agreement without first obtaining the prior written 

consent of the other, which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole and absolute 

discretion of the applicable Party. 

17. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 

constitute one and the same instrument. 

18. INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the College agrees to 

protect, reimburse, indemnify and hold the City, its agents, employees, and officers free and 

harmless from and against any and all liabilities, claims, expenses, losses, costs, fines and 

damages (including but not limited to attorney’s fees and court costs) and causes of action of 

every kind and character arising out of, resulting from, incident to, or in connection with any 

breach by the College of the terms of this Agreement.  The obligations of the College under this 

paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  The duty to defend 

arises immediately upon written presentation of a claim to the College.    

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City agrees to protect, reimburse, indemnify 

and hold the College, its agents, employees, and officers free and harmless from and against any 

and all liabilities, claims, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including but not limited to 

attorney’s fees and court costs) and causes of action of every kind and character arising out of, 

resulting from, incident to, or in connection with any breach by the City of the terms of this 

Agreement.  The obligations of the City under this paragraph shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement.  The duty to defend arises immediately upon written 

presentation of a claim to the City. 

19. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  In the performance of its obligations under this 

Agreement, the College will not discriminate against any qualified employee or qualified 

applicant for employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital 

status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation.  In the event any portion of this Agreement is 

subcontracted by the undersigned, said subcontract shall include a provision prohibiting the 

subcontractor from discriminating against any qualified employee or qualified applicant for 

employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status, 

disability, sex, or sexual orientation.  This provision is inserted herein in compliance with Section 

1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to 

carry out the intent of said ordinance. 

20. REPRESENTATIVE’S AUTHORITY TO CONTRACT.  By signing this document, each 

Party represents to the other that such person is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of such Party and that such Party agrees to be bound by the provisions thereof. 



CA File #14-1230 Page 6 of 6 Memorandum of Understanding 

Powerhouse Riverwalk 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and 

sealed, all the day and year written above. 

CITY OF BELOIT 

 

By:______________________________ 

Larry N. Arft, City Manager 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By:______________________________ 

Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By:________________________________ 

Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney 

 

I hereby certify that there are sufficient 

funds available to pay the liability incurred 

by the City of Beloit pursuant to this 

agreement. 

 

By:________________________________ 

Eric Miller, City Comptroller 

 
****** 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN  ) 

    )SS 

COUNTY OF ROCK  ) 

 

Personally appeared before me this ________ 

day of ___________________, 20____, the 

above-named Larry Arft, City Manager and 

Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk, to me 

known to be such City Manager and Deputy City 

Clerk, and to me known to be the persons who 

executed the foregoing agreement as such 

officers of said entity, by its authority.   

 

_____________________________________ 

Elizabeth A. Krueger 

Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin 

My commission is permanent. 

BELOIT COLLEGE 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

 

_____________________________ 

Print Name and Title 

 
       

 

 

****** 

 

 

STATE OF _________________ ) 

    )SS 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

 

 

Personally came before me this ________ day of 

________________________, 20____, the 

above-named 

________________________________________

____, its ________________________, to me 

known to be such officer of Contractor and to 

me known to be the person who executed the 

foregoing agreement as such officer of said 

entity, by its authority.  

 

      

       

Notary Public, ___________ County, 

___________ 

My Commission is permanent.  If not, state  

expiration date:     

 

       

 

 

tdh/Files/14-1230/Memorandum of Understanding - Powerhouse Riverwalk 20150511 1535 























RESOLUTION APPROVING A LANDFILL DISPOSAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JANESVILLE AND THE CITY OF BELOIT

WHEREAS, Janesville owns and operates a solid waste landfill located at 525 Black
Bridge Road, Janesville, Wisconsin 53545 (the “Landfill”);

WHEREAS, Beloit is a provider of solid waste collection and transportation services
located in the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, Janesville desires to dispose of waste delivered to the Landfill by the Beloit,
and to provide other services to Beloit, and Beloit desires to deliver waste to the Landfill and
receive other services from Janesville, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the attached
Landfill Disposal Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attached Landfill Disposal
Agreement between the City of Janesville and the City of Beloit is hereby approved and the City
Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is hereby, authorized to execute the same, to further
execute any other documents to implement the terms and conditions thereof, and to do all
other things necessary in order to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Adopted this 18th day of May, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Judith A. Elson, Deputy City Clerk
tdh\resolution\Landfill Disposal Agreement = res = 150511



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Landfill Agreement

Date: May 18, 2015

Presenter(s): Christine Walsh Department(s):Public Works - Operations

Overview/Background Information:
On October 1, 2005 the City entered into a ten (10) year contract with Mallard Ridge Landfill to dispose of residential
waste and inorganic material from the wastewater treatment plant. This agreement is set to expire on September 30,
2015. Currently, the City is paying Mallard Ridge Landfill $32.68 per ton.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. On February 6, 2015, Janesville City Manager, Mark Freitag, sent a letter proposing the cities enter into an

intergovernmental agreement (IGA) to dispose of solid waste.
2. The City would realize a savings of $186,994.00 in the first five (5) years of the agreement compared to our current

rate, assuming the rate for Mallard Ridge remain constant.
3. This agreement would further bolster the intergovernmental cooperative relationship that already exists between

Janesville and Beloit.
4. Economic stability for a local landfill is beneficial for Beloit. This will tend to keep the solid waste landfill market more

competitive by helping to maintain the supply of landfill options.
5. This type of cooperative agreement is a “win-win” for both communities by reducing the City of Beloit’s disposal cost

and providing Janesville with increased revenue.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

1. As an eco-friendly municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure;
to protect both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

2. Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Clearly, this project supports both sustainable stewardship of resources and a partnership with other jurisdictions to
promote a win-win for both communities.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels
Operations semi will be driving less miles per year with average savings of 1,084 gallons or $4,023 of diesel
per year, reducing our Greenhouse gas emissions by 29,247 pounds annually.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature
N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems
The Janesville landfill is licensed and monitored by the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources,
to prevent harm.

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently
This agreement protects the regions ability to have landfill options, thus stabilizing regional landfill pricing

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends that council vote in favor of authorizing the City Manager to proceed with entering into a Landfill
Disposal Agreement between the City of Beloit and Janesville.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Five year projected Landfill savings approximately $186,994.00



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 1 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

LANDFILL DISPOSAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF JANESVILLE AND

THE CITY OF BELOIT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this ____ day of
____________________________, 2015, by and between the City of Janesville, a Wisconsin
municipal corporation conducting its primary business at 18 North Jackson Street, City of
Janesville, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin 53545 (“Janesville”), and the City of Beloit, a
Wisconsin municipal corporation conducting its primary business at 100 State Street, City of
Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin 53511 (“Beloit”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Janesville owns and operates a solid waste landfill located at 525 Black
Bridge Road, Janesville, Wisconsin 53545 (the “Landfill”);

WHEREAS, Beloit is a provider of solid waste collection and transportation services
located in the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, Janesville desires to dispose of Waste delivered to the Landfill by the
Beloit, and to provide other services to Beloit, and Beloit desires to deliver Waste to the
Landfill and receive other services from Janesville, upon the terms and conditions set forth
herein.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto,
each intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings set forth below:

a. “Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules
and Regulations under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and shall additionally include successors, designees and assigns.

b. “Agreement” means this Agreement between Beloit and Janesville (collectively
“Parties”), as modified, supplemented, or restated from time to time, together with
any exhibits, schedules or attachments hereto.

c. ”Class A Biosolids” means biosolids, as defined in Wisconsin Administrative
Code § NR 204.03(55), that meet the Class A pathogen requirements set forth in
Wisconsin Administrative Code § NR 204.07(6).

d. “Class B Biosolids” means biosolids, as defined in Wisconsin Administrative
Code § NR 204.03(55), that meet the Class B pathogen requirements set forth in
Wisconsin Administrative Code § NR 204.07(6).



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 2 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

e. “Disposal Facility” or “Landfill” means the landfill known as the Landfill located at
525 Black Bridge Road, Janesville, Wisconsin 53545, and owned and/or
operated by the City of Janesville, or its Affiliate.

f. “Effective Date” is October 1, 2015.

g. “Environmental Laws” means all applicable laws, directives, rules, ordinances,
codes, guidelines, regulations, governmental, administrative or judicial orders or
decrees or other legal requirements of any kind, including, without limitation,
common law, whether currently in existence or hereafter promulgated, enacted,
adopted or amended, relating to safety, preservation or protection of human
health and the environment (including ambient air, surface water, groundwater,
land or subsurface strata) and/or relating to the handling, treatment,
transportation or disposal of waste.

h. “Fees and Taxes” means any federal or state taxes, assessments, fees,
surcharges or similar charges directly related to the acceptance and/or disposal
of Waste that are imposed on the Disposal Facility and/or Janesville by law,
rule, or regulation.

i. “Hazardous Materials” means any pollutant, contaminant, hazardous or toxic
substance, constituent or material, including, without limitation, petroleum
products and their derivatives, or other substances, regulated under or pursuant
to any Environmental Laws.

j. “Hazardous Waste” means any waste regulated as such under or pursuant to
any Environmental Laws. The term “Hazardous Waste” also includes any waste
that is, after the Effective Date of this Agreement, deemed hazardous by any
judicial or governmental entity, body, or agency having jurisdiction to make that
determination.

k. “Proposal” means the Janesville’s Proposal. The Proposal is attached hereto
and made a part hereof as Exhibit A.

l. “Special Waste” means non-hazardous waste that requires special handling or
management due to its composition or volume. The term “Special Waste”
includes Class A Biosolids and Class B Biosolids. All Special Waste must comply
with the Disposal Facility’s Special Waste Program and procedures prior to
acceptance.

m. “Ton” means 2,000 pounds.

n. “Unacceptable Waste” means any and all solid waste that the Disposal Facility is
not authorized to accept for disposal pursuant to its permits and licenses,
including, without limitation, highly inflammable substances, Hazardous
Materials, Hazardous Waste, liquid wastes, certain pathological and biological
wastes, explosives, radioactive materials and any other materials deemed by
state or federal law, or in the reasonable discretion of Janesville, to be
dangerous or threatening to health or the environment or the operations
conducted at the Disposal Facility. For the purposes of this Agreement,



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 3 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

Unacceptable Waste shall include contaminated soils, foundry waste, mill cover
or shredder fluff, asbestos, tires, appliances, high volume industrial waste.

o. “Waste” means any and all non-hazardous solid waste delivered by Beloit to the
Disposal Facility, and which the Disposal Facility is legally permitted to accept for
disposal pursuant to the terms of its operating permit(s).

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless
earlier terminated, this Agreement shall remain in full force until September 30, 2020,
(the “Initial Term”). This Agreement may be renewed and extended for a successive
period of five (5) years by mutual written agreement of the Parties (“Renewal Term”) and
executed prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. All references herein to the “Term” of
this Agreement shall be deemed to include the Initial Term and a Renewal Terms.

3. DISPOSAL FEES.

a. Beloit shall pay Janesville disposal fees as follows for the disposal of Waste at
the Disposal Facility during the Term of this Agreement. Janesville may not
increase the disposal fees during the Term of this Agreement unless mutually
agreed to by the Parties.

Term Fees

Effective Date through 12/31/2016 $15.00 per ton

1/1/2017 - 12/31/2017 $15.50 per ton

1/1/2018 - 12/31/2018 $16.00 per ton

1/1/2019 - 12/31/2019 $16.50 per ton

1/1/2020 - 9/30/2020 $17.00 per ton

b. The Parties agree that the pricing schedule for the Renewal Term shall be based
upon the prior year’s base fee multiplied by a mutually agreeable, and as yet to
be determined, Consumer Price Index, but in no event shall exceed three percent
(3%) per year.

c. Janesville shall pass through to Beloit all tonnage fees, taxes and surcharges
imposed by the State of Wisconsin, as provided in Wisconsin Statutes and the
Administrative Code, currently $13.00 per ton. All pass-through fees, taxes and
surcharges shall be included in Beloit’s monthly invoice. Increases in these fees
shall not be the sole basis for Beloit to terminate this agreement.

d. Janesville shall send Beloit an invoice within ten (10) days after the conclusion
of each month during the term of this Agreement. Beloit shall pay Janesville the
full amount invoiced within thirty (30) days after receipt of the invoice.

4. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF WASTE

a. Each calendar month during the Term of this Agreement, Beloit agrees to
deliver, and shall deliver, to the Disposal Facility for disposal ninety-five percent
(95%) of the Waste (the “Base Volume”) Beloit (or its contractor(s)) transports



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 4 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

and/or collects during the month within the City of Beloit (the “Exclusivity
Obligation”). In the event Beloit desires to dispose of Waste in excess of the
Base Volume at another landfill, Beloit shall first grant Janesville the option to
accept such Waste upon the terms, conditions and Disposal Rate set forth
herein. In the event Janesville exercises its option to accept such Waste, Beloit
shall deliver such Waste to the Landfill pursuant to the terms and conditions set
forth herein and furthermore Beloit shall pay for the disposal of said Waste at the
Disposal Rate that is applicable hereunder on the date of delivery.

b. Janesville shall weigh all vehicles delivering Waste by or on behalf of Beloit to
the Disposal Facility. At any time, Janesville may confirm the tare weight of any
vehicle delivering Waste to the Disposal Facility by or on behalf of Beloit.

c. Beloit acknowledges that Janesville intends to reject Waste that, in Janesville’s
sole determination, would be in violation of this Agreement, Janesville’s then
existing licenses or permits, or would result in a violation of applicable federal,
state or local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or orders.

d. Ownership of Waste delivered to the Landfill by or on behalf of Beloit shall pass
to and be accepted by Janesville when the vehicle transporting the Waste is
fully unloaded at the Disposal Facility.

e. Janesville may detain and inspect the contents of all vehicles delivering Waste
to the Disposal Facility. Beloit agrees to monitor and inspect on a regular basis
the contents of its vehicles in order to ensure that the Waste being delivered to
the Disposal Facility contains no Unacceptable Waste.

f. Beloit shall not deliver to, or dispose of, any Unacceptable Waste at the Disposal
Facility unless such action has been agreed to in advance, in writing, by
Janesville and the Unacceptable Waste is of a type permitted to be disposed of
in the Landfill.

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF JANESVILLE. At its own expense, the Janesville shall have
the following responsibilities in the administration of this Agreement:

a. Project Officer. Janesville’s Operations Director, or his/her designee, shall act
as Janesville’s representative with respect to this Agreement.

b. Hours of Operation. At a minimum, unless the hours and/or days are changed by
Janesville, in which event such changed hours and days shall govern, the
Janesville shall maintain the following hours of operation at its landfill except as
provided in (5)(c) and (d) of this Agreement:

Monday-Friday 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
Saturday 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.

c. Holidays. The Landfill will not be open for operations on the following holidays:

New Year’s Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 5 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

d. Early Closure of Operations Due to Excessive Wind Speed. Occasionally, and
from time to time, Janesville may close the Landfill earlier than as provided for in
(5)(b) of this Agreement due to excessive wind speed. Such early closure shall
be at the sole discretion of Janesville. In the event of early closure, Janesville
shall open the Landfill, for use by Beloit, by 7:00 a.m. the day following such
early closure, except that Janesville shall not open the Landfill for any reason on
Sunday or any holiday listed in (5)(c) of this Agreement.

e. State-Certified Truck Scale. Janesville shall, at all times, maintain a state-
certified truck scale at the Landfill with a maximum weighing capability of 100,000
pounds. Annual calibration, maintenance and licensing information shall be
furnished to Beloit upon request.

f. Janesville shall, at all times, observe and comply with all Federal, State and
local ordinances, laws and regulations, as from time to time amended, modified
or rectified.

g. Janesville shall comply with all laws pertaining to sanitation, pollution, and the
work performed by Janesville, the regulations of the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources pertaining to solid waste management and recycling, and
related regulations, as from time to time amended, modified or rectified.

6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BELOIT. At its own expense, the Beloit shall have the
following responsibilities in the administration of this Agreement:

a. Insurance Requirements. Beloit shall, at all times, provide, pay for, and have in
full force and effect, the following public liability insurance:

(1) Bodily injury in the amounts of $1,000,000 for each person and
$1,000,000 for each occurrence. Completed operations and products
liability aggregate limit of $500,000 during the term of insurance. For
coverage of bodily injuries or death suffered or alleged to have been
suffered by any person or persons by reason of or in the course of
operations under this Agreement, whether occurring by reason of the acts
or omissions of the CITY OF BELOIT. Such insurance shall be
maintained for the duration of this Agreement.

(2) Property damage in the amount of $1,000,000 for each occurrence and
$1,000,000 in the aggregate during the term of insurance. For coverage
of damages to property suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any
person or persons by reason of or in the course of operations under this
Agreement, whether occurring by reason of acts or omissions of the
Beloit. Such insurance shall be maintained for the duration of this
Agreement.



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 6 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

b. Laws and Regulations

(1) Beloit shall, at all times, observe and comply with all Federal, State and
local ordinances, laws and regulations, as from time to time amended,
modified or rectified.

(2) Beloit shall comply with all laws pertaining to sanitation, pollution, and the
work performed by Beloit, the regulations of the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources pertaining to solid waste management and recycling,
and related regulations, as from time to time amended, modified or
rectified.

(3) Beloit shall not, to the extent possible, knowingly deliver for disposal at
the Landfill, recyclable materials banned from disposal by §287.07(1m) to
(5) Wis. Stats., and Janesville General Ordinance 8.64, as from time to
time amended, modified or rectified.

c. Project Manager. Beloit’s Director of Operations in the Public Works
Department, or his/her designee, shall be assigned to be the point of contact for
Beloit for the purposes of this Agreement.

7. INSURANCE. Janesville shall maintain at all times during the Term of this Agreement
the insurance coverages set forth below. Janesville agrees to waive all rights of
recovery by way of subrogation against Beloit in connection with any claims and/or
damages covered by any of the insurance policies required to be maintained by
Janesville under this section and Janesville agrees that it shall cause all such
insurance policies to provide that the insurance company waives all rights of recovery by
way of subrogation against Beloit in connection with any claims and/or damages
covered by such policies.

a. Commercial General Liability.

(1) General Aggregate Limit $1,000,000
(2) Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(3) Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $1,000,000
(4) Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000
(5) Medical Expense Limit/Any One Person $10,000

The Commercial General Liability policy will include protection for Bodily Injury
and Property Damage Liability arising from premises, operations, products and
completed operations, Contract Liability coverage for this Contract and related
contracts, including subcontracts, Coverage for bodily injury or personal injury
inflicted by one employee upon another, and Coverage for property in the care,
custody or control of Janesville or a “Property of Others” policy.

b. Automobile Liability Insurance. Janesville shall maintain during the life of the
Agreement such Automobile Liability Insurance as shall protect it against claims
for damages resulting from (a) bodily injury, including wrongful death, and (b)



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 7 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

property damage which may arise from the operations of any owned, hired, or
now-owned automobiles used by or for it in any capacity in connection with the
carrying out of this Agreement. The minimum acceptable limits of liability to be
provided by such Automobile Liability Insurance shall be as follows:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage: $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

c. Worker’s Compensation. Janesville shall provide Worker's Compensation
Insurance coverage including coverage for injuries caused by fellow employees
in accordance with Wisconsin statutory limits.

d. Changes in Coverage. Janesville shall not discontinue or change liability
insurance policies in effect during any part of this Agreement without buying “tail
end” insurance to cover potential claims that may have occurred during the term
of this Agreement. The hold harmless, indemnity and insurance provisions of
this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement and shall remain
operative until the time that all potential claims or potential civil actions by the
Parties or by third parties shall expire under existing law.

8. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. Beloit shall, at all times, indemnify, save and keep harmless Janesville, its
officers, agents and employees of and from all liabilities, liens, judgments, costs,
damages and expenses of whatsoever kind which may in any way be suffered by
Janesville or by any of its officers, agents, or employees, or which may accrue
against or be charged to or recovered from Janesville, or its said officers, agents
or employees by reason of or in consequence of Beloit’s performance under this
Agreement.

b. Janesville shall, at all times, indemnify, save and keep harmless Beloit, its
officers, agents and employees of and from all liabilities, liens, judgments, costs,
damages and expenses of whatsoever kind which may in any way be suffered by
Beloit or by any of its officers, agents, or employees, or which may accrue
against or be charged to or recovered from Beloit, or its said officers, agents or
employees by reason of or in consequence of Janesville’s performance under
this Agreement. The duty to defend arises immediately upon written presentation
of a claim to Janesville.

9. PERSONNEL. The Parties shall employ, at its own expense, all personnel required to
perform the services required by this Agreement. No person employed by one of the
Parties shall be construed to be an employee of the other Party at any time. The Parties
warrant that all personnel engaged in the work performed under this Agreement shall be
qualified and authorized/permitted by the State of Wisconsin to perform said work.

10. DATA TO BE FURNISHED. Secondary sources of information, data, reports, audits,
records and maps as owned by Janesville and necessary for carrying out the work as
outlined in this Agreement shall be furnished to Beloit upon request and without charge
by Janesville.



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 8 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

11. TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement, and the rights and
privileges granted to the Parties pursuant to this Agreement, shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the successors of such parties hereto; provided, however, that no
party may transfer or assign (whether by operation of law, merger or otherwise) this
Agreement, or its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other party which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed.

12. NOTICES. All notices or other communications to be given hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be sent by facsimile, overnight delivery, or first class United States mail,
properly addressed as follows:

Janesville John Whitcomb
Operations Director
2200 US Hwy 51 North
P.O. Box 5005
Janesville, WI 53547-5005

Beloit Christine Walsh
Director of Operations
City of Beloit Operations Facility
2351 Springbrook Court
Beloit, Wisconsin 53511

13. AMENDMENTS. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon any party
hereto until such amendment is reduced to writing and executed by the Parties.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties
regarding this project. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into this
Agreement.

15. FORCE MAJEURE. No party shall be responsible to the other party for any losses if the
fulfillment of any term of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by civil disorders, wars,
strikes, floods, fires, acts of God, or by any other cause not within the reasonable control
of the party whose performance was interfered with and which, by the exercise of
reasonable diligence, such party is unable to prevent, whether or not of the class of
causes enumerated above, and the time for performance shall be extended for the
period of delay occasioned by any such cause.

16. HEADINGS. The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience and
reference only and do not define or limit the scope or content of this Agreement or affect
any of its provisions.

17. DEFAULT AND NOTICE OF DEFAULT. In the event any party fails to comply with or
perform any of the covenants, agreements and obligations to be performed by that party
under the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the other party shall be entitled to
pursue any and all remedies available at law or in equity including, without limitation, a
suit for specific performance of this Agreement. Any party seeking to enforce its rights
hereunder may do so only after giving advance written notice to the other party



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 9 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

reasonably identifying the alleged breach and giving the breaching party thirty (30) days
in which to cure the alleged breach, unless the cure cannot reasonably be completed
within said thirty (30) day period, at which time the cure period will be extended by a
reasonable time necessary for said cure.

18. APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and the Parties agree
that Rock County, Wisconsin, shall have jurisdiction to handle any litigation between the
Parties.

19. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. Janesville represents and warrants that it will adopt an
affirmative action plan to increase its partners, associates, and employees members of
under-represented groups in all of its departments, job classifications, and salary
categories in compliance with applicable Federal and State guidelines. This provision is
inserted herein in compliance with Section 1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of
the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to carry out the intent of that ordinance.

20. NONDISCRIMINATION. Janesville shall not discriminate against any qualified
employee or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color, national origin,
ancestry, religion, age, marital status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation. In the event
any portion of this Agreement is subcontracted by Janesville, Janesville shall include in
such subcontract, a provision prohibiting the subcontractor from discriminating against
any qualified employee or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color,
national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status, disability, sex, or sexual
orientation. This provision is inserted herein in compliance with section 1.09 of the Code
of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to carry out
the intent of said ordinance.

21. WAIVER. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and is signed by the party
asserted to have granted the waiver.

22. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Agreement are independent of and severable
from each other, and no provision shall be affected or rendered invalid or unenforceable
by virtue of the fact that any provision may be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in
part.

23. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. It is specifically declared that time is of the essence in the
performance of this Agreement by each party hereto of each, every, and all provisions of
this Agreement.

24. MEASURES. Janesville shall cooperate and maintain proper record keeping for the
landfilling of Waste in conformance with all applicable federal, state and local laws.
Janesville shall also cooperate with all reasonable directives from Beloit for procedures
to evaluate the performance of Janesville on the following measures. The following
measures shall be evaluated and utilized by Beloit in determining whether to agree to
an extension of the Term of this Agreement:

a. Number of driver complaints and resolution of said complaints.
b. Number of accidents at the Landfill involving Beloit’s vehicles.
c. Length of time taken to weigh in, drop load and weigh out Beloit’s vehicles at the

Landfill.



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 10 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

d. Amount of supervisor monitoring effort expended to monitor delivery of Waste to
the Landfill by Beloit’s Vehicles.

e. Condition of the Landfill.
f. Any other aspects of evaluation imposed by Beloit.

25. CONSTRUCTION. The Parties agree and acknowledge that they have jointly
participated in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event of an
ambiguity or a question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be
construed as if drafted jointly by the Parties and no presumptions or burdens of proof
shall arise favoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this
Agreement. Any reference to any federal, state, local or foreign statute or law shall be
deemed also to refer to all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, unless the
context requires otherwise.

26. INTEREST OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

a. Interest of Members of Janesville. No member of the governing body of
Janesville and no other officer, employee, or agent of Janesville who exercises
any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning and carrying out
of the program shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement; and Janesville shall take appropriate steps to assure compliance.

b. Interest of Other Local Public Officials. No member of the governing body of
Beloit and no other officer, employee, or agent of Beloit who exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning and carrying out of
the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement; and the Beloit shall take appropriate steps to assure compliance.

27. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any disputes related to this Agreement that are not resolved
by mutual agreement of the Parties shall be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction
in Rock County, Wisconsin. Either party may sue the other for declaratory judgment,
damages, specific performance, injunctive relief or any other legal or equitable relief as
may be provided by law. All remedies are cumulative and not exclusive. The
performance of this Agreement and the resolution of all disputes connected therewith
shall be governed by the laws and regulations of the State of Wisconsin.

28. TERMINATION UPON BREACH. If either Party commits a breach or default in the
performance or observance of any of its obligations under this Agreement, and such
breach or default continues for a period of 30 days or any other period of time provided
for in paragraph 17 of this Agreement then the non-breaching or non-defaulting party
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, with immediate effect, by giving written
notice to the breaching or defaulting party.

Signatures on following Page



Beloit CA File Number: 15-1054 Page 11 of 11 Landfill Disposal Agreement
City of Janesville and City of Beloit

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties agree to the terms of this Agreement.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:______________________________
Larry N. Arft, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:______________________________
Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

I hereby certify that there are sufficient funds
available to pay the liability incurred by the City
of Beloit pursuant to this agreement.

By:________________________________
Eric Miller, City Comptroller

******
STATE OF WISCONSIN )

)SS
COUNTY OF ROCK )

Personally appeared before me this ________
day of ___________________, 20____, the
above-named Larry Arft, City Manager and
Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk, to me
known to be such City Manager and Deputy City
Clerk, and to me known to be the persons who
executed the foregoing agreement as such
officers of said entity, by its authority.

_____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger
Notary Public, Rock County, Wisconsin
My commission is permanent.

CITY OF JANESVILLE

By:______________________________
Mark Freitag, City Manager

******

STATE OF _________________ )
)SS

COUNTY OF _______________ )

Personally came before me this ________ day of
________________________, 20____, the
above-named Mark Freitag, its City Manager, to
me known to be such City Manager and to me
known to be the person who executed the
foregoing agreement as such officer of said
entity, by its authority.

Notary Public, ___________ County,
___________
My Commission is permanent. If not, state
expiration date:

Tdh/files/15-1054/Landfill Disposal Agreement=150510 (clean)


	Monday, May 18, 2015
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.  Wisconsin Law Enforcement Accreditation Group (WILEAG)  Presentation (Jacobs/ Robert Rosch, Hartland Police (Jacobs)
	b. Introduction to Beloit Services- Citizen Service Request Program  (Boysen)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	5.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of May 4, 2015  (Elson)
	b.	Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Danny R. Hatch Jr., d/b/a The Alumni House, 863 Fifth Street  (Elson) ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-1
	c. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor License for Blazin Wings, Inc., d/b/a Buffalo Wild Wings, 2747 Milwaukee Road, David Babcock, Agent  (Elson)   ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0
	d.	Resolution awarding Public Works Contract C15-07, Street Resurfacing  (Boysen)

	7.	ORDINANCES
	a.	Proposed Ordinance to add No-Parking between 3 A.M. – 6 A.M. Regulations in the Heritage View Parking Lot (Boysen) Traffic Review Committee recommendation for approval 5-0First reading, suspend rules for second reading

	8.	APPOINTMENTS
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	a.	Code Enforcement Presentation (Downing)

	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution authorizing the 422 Bluff Street/310 Euclid Project (Christensen)
	b.	Resolution approving a Development Agreement between City of Beloit, 200 West Grand Avenue, LLC, and East Grand Avenue Development, LLC, for sale of 80 East Grand and 100 East Grand Avenue (Janke)
	c.	Resolution approving a Memorandum of Understanding between Beloit College and City of Beloit regarding Powerhouse Riverwalk Project (Arft)
	d.	Resolution approving a Landfill Disposal Agreement between the City of Janesville and the City of Beloit  (Walsh)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

